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Chairman’s Statement

FRBE

Dear SHAREHOLDERS:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the “Directors”) of
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”). | am glad to present the
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 (the “reporting
period”).

RESULTS

The Group has recorded the revenue of approximately RMB1,082,110,000
for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: RMB947,710,000), which
was increased by 14.2% from the revenue of 2008. Profit attributable
to equity holders of the parent was approximately RMB118,388,000
(2008: RMB102,037,000), which was increased by 16.0% from the profit
of 2008. The increase in revenue was mainly due to the growth in the
Group’s bulk medicines business and system specific medicines business.
Specifically, the sales of bulk medicines increased 16.0%, and the sales of
system specific medicines increased 18.8%. Consistently, the Group pays
close attention to the development tendency of the total policy for China
environmental protection and formulates plans ahead of time. The Group
has been investing in construction of environmentally friendly pollution-
control facilities and Good Manufacturing Practice (“GMP”) upgrading
facilities for a few years already. Hence, in 2009 both the original and new
production capacities of the bulk medicines could still be fully utilized under
the Central Government’s stringent legal requirements for environmental
protection and increased the sale of bulk medicines. Also, from the strategic
development perspective, the Group has been enhancing the market
penetration actions in the field of cardiovascular system specific medicines
and expanding the doctors’ expertise network incrementally. Therefore,
the market share for system specific medicines was increased. The growth
of the system specific medicines business not only increased the general
gross profit margin but also optimized our product portfolio. In addition, the
Group insists on utilizing the tight cost-control principle of corporate finance.
Under the current economic environment of credit crisis and financing
difficulties caused by financial crisis all over the world, the Group has
managed to maintain healthy and stable cashflows. The operating activities
cash inflow was RMB138,987,000 in 2009 (2008: RMB97,799,000), which
was increased by 42.1%. Hence, for the year ended 31 December 2009,
under the condition of maintaining stable dividend payout policy, aimost all
the development projects have been funded by the Group’s own sufficient
internal capital resources.
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Chairman’s Statement

FRBE

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of HK$0.05 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2009, amounting to the total
sum of approximately HK$39,530,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB34,769,000).

Taking into consideration the interim dividend of HK$0.018 per share, the
total annual dividend distributed for the year is HK$0.068 per share. The
dividend payout ratio is approximately 39.9%.

THE OVERVIEW OF 2009

Due to the healthcare reform and industry policies formulated by the Central
Government, pharmaceutical manufacturers in China maintained growth
in both domestic sales and profit in the year 2009. Meanwhile, because of
the international financial crisis, the growth of export sales decreased and
firms faced major stress from international markets. One main reason was
that financial crisis caused many countries to adopt a monetary policy to
depreciate currencies. The currency of China, Renminbi (RMB), however,
has been appreciating substantially, which made Chinese firms who
specialize in bulk exporting faced pressure overseas.

The Ministry of Environmental Protection of the People’s Republic of China
issued the “Discharge Standard of Water Pollutants for Pharmaceutical
Industry” in June of 2008, which officially set the standard for all the newly
established pharmaceutical manufacturers to follow. The incumbents were
required to update their pollution control facilities in given periods. Because
the new standard is high, many enterprises in the pharmaceutical sector
have been upgrading their facilities or changing technologies to satisfy the
discharge standard, basically through establishing new water pollutant
systems and solid pollutant systems. Hence, the capital expenditure was

increased but the profit decreased for many firms.

Because of the new wave of healthcare reform formulated by the Central
Government of China, especially the issue of the “National Essential Drug
System” and the “National Essential Drug List-Section for state-owned
grass-roots health institutions uses”, domestic pharmaceutical market
demand is increasing, which leads to the fast growth of the pharmaceutical
industry. The Board believes that the increase rate of industrial output value
for the pharmaceutical sector in 2009 would be similar to the rates of the
past two years, i.e., approximately 16%.
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Chairman’s Statement

FRBE

Because of the implementation of major industry policies such as the
“Provisions for Drug Registration” and new GMP standards, the speed for
pharmaceutical sector firms’ reorganization and restructuring is rapid. For
one thing, the industry resources are effectively flowing into strong players
in this sector. The Central Government of China formulated a few important
industry policies in order to upgrade the technologies of drug manufacturers
and to restructure the industry as a whole. The Group understands that
the healthcare reform will stimulate an increase in the demand of essential
drugs on the one hand and shape the distribution channels of the industry
on the other. The growth opportunities for hospitals at the county-level are
especially tremendous. Therefore, the products of the Group fully leverage
the advantages associated with the cephalosporin vertical integration, the
matured sales force, and the flexible management model to cover basic
healthcare units, including county-level hospitals and community-level
hospitals in major cities.

THE PROSPECTS OF 2010

In 2010, the Board believes that the local governments of China will
incrementally implement the reform projects of public hospitals and provide
fiscal subsidies for the basic healthcare units (i.e., hospitals at the county-
level). From the perspective of hospital operations, the core message of
healthcare reform in China will be establishing effective public hospital
administration systems and exploring the public hospital governance
mechanisms. Hospitals are institutional buyers of the Group. Any change
in their purchasing behaviors will generate significant impacts to the future
growth of pharmaceutical firms.

In the meantime, the State Food and Drug Administration (“SFDA”) of the
People’s Republic of China is going to refer to the GMP of the World Health
Organization as the benchmark of China’s GMP. China’s SFDA will also
follow the GMP standards set by the US and European Union in order
to upgrade China’s GMP to the cutting edge of global standards. From
the perspective of the SFDA, this is one major force to push domestic
pharmaceutical firms to compete in the global arena. Hence, currently the
small and mid-sized firms with old technologies and limited resources will
face the stress of being eliminated in the near future.
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Chairman’s Statement

FRBE

Based upon the above brief analysis, the Board believes that the
competitive advantage of the Group in 2010 will come from the capability of
marketing in the drug marketplace and the ability to adapt to the healthcare
industry policy in China. The Group will enhance the market research and
research and development (“R&D”) management for high-end products to
increase the knowledge and technology capabilities of the firm. In the long
term, the strategy of technological leadership and the flexible corporate
resource arrangement will allow us as a pharmaceutical enterprise to
outperform our competitors in an ever-changing emerging market and

create value and a desired rate of return for our shareholders.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Board believes that the direction of building any pharmaceutical
enterprise should be based on cutting edge knowledge and technology.
We believe that human resources are the most valuable treasure of the
Group and the essential driving force for the sustainable development of the
Group. | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude
to my colleagues spread across China for their dedication and diligence.

Li Kei Ling
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2010
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BUSINESS REVIEW
BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In January 2009, the new medical reform of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) was formally rolled out. Based on the main features of the
pharmaceutical industry of China, namely the continuous rapid growth of
the industry as a whole, the initial progress made on the restructuring of
the industry, the accelerated pace of innovation and further standardization
of the distribution mechanism of pharmaceutical products, and taking into
account the actual conditions of the Group, the Group further rationalized
its production procedures and increased its product yield, thereby lowering
its manufacturing cost. Following the successful commencement of
production of Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology
Co., Ltd. in 2009, the Group further expanded its production capacity,
and the scale of economy created also helped reduce manufacturing
cost. In respect of the sales strategies, the Group further adjusted its
product portfolio, and got through to its marketing efforts, “cefepime”, its
new product launched in 2008, has seen significant increase in sales and
expansion of market share in 2009. As the exclusive research partner and
designated medicine supplier of the “Chinese Hypertension Intervention
Efficacy Study” (“CHIEF” Study) under China’s Eleventh Five-Year plan,
the Group effectively enhanced its corporate image and brand recognition,
recording steady increase in sales. On the research and development front,
the Group mainly cooperated with research institutes, focusing on the
research and development of new drugs and first generic version drugs with

the majority related to the cardiovascular field.
PRODUCTION & SALES OPERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the production and sales volume of
bulk medicines of the Group increased by 17.5% and 25.2% respectively as
compared to the corresponding period of 2008. The production and sales
volume of powder for injections increased by 6.7% and 3.7% respectively
as compared to the corresponding period of last year. The production
and sales volume of solid-dosage-forms increased by 13.7% and 9.7%
respectively as compared to the corresponding period of last year. Export
sales of the Group amounted to approximately RMB99,688,000, increased
by 34.5% as compared to RMB74,103,000 recorded in the corresponding
period of last year.
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DEVELOPMENT OF NEW PRODUCTS

In 2009, the Group applied to the State and/or Provincial Food and Drug
Administration to register a total of 30 products for 32 registrations.
Accordingly, the Group received 17 supplemental production permits and
4 clinical permits. There were 7 products under clinical trials. The clinical
trial of system specific medicines for chronic hepatitis B and those for
cardiovascular system completed. There are on-going clinical trials for 5
products included system specific medicines for cardiovascular system and

anti-infective medicines.

CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS FOR THE EXPANSION OF
PRODUCTION FACILITIES

Construction projects for the expansion of production facilities in 2009

included:

Pharmaceutical Chemical Intermediates

Civil works of phase Il of the project of Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical
Science and Technology Co., Ltd. commenced.

Preliminary approvals for projects for new products of Suzhou Dawnrays
Chemical Co., Ltd. had been sought from the government and the

construction plan was on the way.

Bulk Medicines

Civil works of the bulk medicines project in Hedong Industrial Park of

Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. commenced.

Pharmaceutical Preparations

Design of the solid-dosage-forms preparations project in Hedong Industrial
Park of Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. commenced.

VOLUNTARY WINDING-UP OF SHANGHAI DAWNRAYS CHEMICAL
CO,, LTD.

Due to the limitations imposed by the environmental protection policies
of Shanghai city and the change of land usage, the normal operation and
sustainable development of Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd. were
affected. In January 2010, the Group commenced the liquidation procedure

for the voluntary winding-up of Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd.
has already commenced production, the winding-up of Shanghai Dawnrays
Chemical Co., Ltd. will not jeopardise the productivity and operation of the
Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

SALES AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group has achieved the
revenue of approximately RMB1,082,110,000, equivalent to an increase of
14.2% compared with the corresponding period of last year. Gross profit
was approximately RMB328,052,000, equivalent to an increase of 27.8%
compared with the corresponding period of last year. Gross profit margin
was increased by 3.2% to 30.3% (2008: 27.1%). The main reasons for
the growing revenue were the surge in sales volume of bulk medicines by
25.2% with a stable increase in sales volume for the relative high gross profit
margin products, system specific medicines and powder for injections, by
9.7% and 3.7% respectively compared with the corresponding period of

last year. Moreover, the unit production cost decreased.

TABLE OF TURNOVER ANALYSIS

ERXRin(BB) BEMEARAFCERNRE - &
REBRBICTERRATEFEAKENERL LS
78 o
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FEZETEH AR 1,082,110,0007T ¢ th A F R HIE
£14.2% - EF|FE L AR ¥ 328,052,0007C * thEF
Al B8 K 27.8% ° £FIE 530.3% @ BEFREH
27A% MR T 3.2% - BEFE EANEERARRE
MIEEHERAFRIANIFIEK25.2%; BmTH RN
ERE RSB EEHENE TRLE - HRIRA
FRMHER 7% NM3.7% + A ME R ELL K ALK AT
ﬁ °

BB -RERED

Product Turnover (RMB’000) Sales Breakdown (%)
Em EEH(AR%TR) SHELLHI (%)
2009 2008 Changes 2009 2008 Changes

—EEAF —TTN\F g —ZTTAE —ZTZT)N\F g
Bulk Medicines [} 636,014 548,092 87,922 58.78 57.83 0.95
Powder for Injections M ETH 285,307 264,322 20,985 26.37 27.89 -1.62
Solid-Dosage-Forms [ 7 75 160,789 135,296 25,493 14.85 14.28 0.57
Overall e 1,082,110 947,710 134,400 100.00 100.00 0.00
EXPENSES BH

The total expenses incurred during the year increased 24.1% making total
of RMB181,184,000 compared with the corresponding period of last year,
equivalent to 16.7% of turnover (2008: 15.4%). The increase was mainly
due to the selling and distribution costs increased by RMB21,811,000
compared with the corresponding period of last year. The main reasons
for the increase were the surge of freight expenses due to the increased
turnover and rise in fuel price. The promotion and marketing activities
expenses also increased due to the exploitation of China and overseas
markets.

FR - BABIEHEXARE 181,184,000 © Bk
FRIHIENN24.1% - (EEEBOLAIR16.7%(ZFF
NEF:15.4%) - BRENREAEZZEREBERKHE
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

For the year ended 31 December 2009, profit attributable to equity holders
of the parent amounted to approximately RMB118,388,000 equivalent to an
increase of 16.0% compared with the corresponding period of last year.

ANALYSIS ON THE RETURN ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2009, net assets attributable to equity holders of the
parent were approximately RMB711,289,000. Net return on net assets,
which is defined as the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent
divided by net assets attributable to equity holders of the parent, was
16.6% (2008: 16.2%). The current ratio and quick ratio was 1.80 and
1.34 respectively. Turnover days for trade and notes receivables was
approximately 137 days. The turnover days for inventory was approximately
82 days.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group held cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB86,450,000 (as at 31 December 2008:
RMB38,936,000). During the year, the net cash flows from operating
activities was approximately RMB138,987,000 (2008: RMB97,799,000).
Net cash flows used in investing activities was approximately
RMB60,396,000 (2008: RMB82,853,000). Net cash flows used in financing
activities was approximately RMB30,987,000 (2008: RMB50,399,000).

As at 31 December 2009, the debt ratio (defined as the sum of bank
advances for discounted bills plus interest-bearing bank loan over total
assets) of the Group was 0.9% (as at 31 December 2008: 2.6%).

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had aggregate bank facilities
of approximately RMB700,568,000 (as at 31 December 2008:
RMB595,000,000).
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As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s capital commitments amounted
to approximately RMB154,410,000 (as at 31 December 2008:
RMB113,370,000), which mainly derived from the construction of new
workshops for non-cephalosporin bulk medicines and solid-dosage-
forms preparation, re-engineering of old workshop to meet new GMP
requirements in Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., the phase
Il of plant construction in Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science
and Technology Co., Ltd., the construction of multi-functional workshop
in Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd., etc. The Group has sufficient
financial and internal resources to bear the capital expenditure.

Save as aforesaid disclosure, the Group had no significant external
investments or material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and

associated companies during the year.
FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND TREASURY POLICIES

As the Group’s substantial business activities, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi, the risk derived from the foreign exchange to
the Group is not high. The treasury policy of the Group is to manage any
risk of foreign exchange (if any) only if it will potentially impose a significant
impact on the Group. The Group continues to observe the foreign exchange
market, and may hedge against foreign currency risk with foreign exchange
forward contracts if necessary.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2009, the Group employed approximately 1,706
employees and the total remuneration was approximately RMB83,165,000
(2008: RMB72,050,000). The Group regards human resources as the most
valuable assets and truly understands the importance of attracting and
retaining high-performance employees. The remuneration policy is generally
based on the references of market salary index and individual qualifications.
The Group provides its employees with other fringe benefits, including
defined contribution retirement schemes, share option scheme and medical
coverage. The Group also offers some of its employees stationed in the
PRC with dormitory accommodation.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had no asset being pledged to banks
to obtain credit facilities (as at 31 December 2008: Nil).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (as
at 31 December 2008: Nil).

PLANS FOR SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND EXPECTED SOURCE
OF FUNDING

Save for those disclosed above in connection with capital commitments
under the section “Liquidity and Financial Resources”, the Group does not
have any plan for material investments or acquisition of capital assets.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services. There is one reportable operating
segment: the manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical products.
Management monitors the operating results of its business units as a
whole for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and

performance assessment.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) believes that corporate governance is essential
to the success of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”). Good corporate governance can safeguard the interests
of all shareholders and enhance corporate value. Therefore, the Board has
adopted various measures to ensure that a high standard of corporate
governance is maintained.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all code
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“Code on CGP”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended 31 December
20009.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities
of the Company by the Directors. Based on specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Company confirms that all the Directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code, throughout the accounting period
covered by the 2009 annual report.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance.
The management has been delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also
delegated various responsibilities to the board committees. Further details
of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board had 6 meetings for the year ended 31 December 2009 to
consider, among other things, reviewing and approving the interim and
annual results of the Group, overall group strategy, annual budgets,
approval of major capital transactions and other significant operational and
financial matters. During the year, ad-hoc meetings were convened when
circumstance required such as review and approve capital expenses for

production facilities.
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Details of the attendance of Directors at these regular Board meetings
and at three other board committees’ meetings (the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee) during the year
2009 are set out in the following table:

RIZTNF  ZSEEREHESFERA LRI =
B3 (ERLBe REZESLFMEER
)L EFIBIIEN T -

No. of meetings attended/held

eRHEREBITRE
Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee = Committee = Committee
Name of Directors BEHR BEEg EREER REEZER FHZEER
Executive Directors HiTEE
Ms. Li Kei Ling (Chairman) THBR L (/) 6/6 2/2 2/2
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RRRITS 6/6
Mr. Li Tung Ming FEREASLE 6/6
Mr. Gao Vi BRI E 6/6
Non-executive Director HEBTEE
Mr. Leung Hong Man RERERR%E 3/6
Independent Non-executive Directors BUINTESE
Mr. Pan Xue Tian EEHE 6/6 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. Sik Siu Kwan (£8P 4/6 2/2 1/2 2/2
Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky BOERAAE 6/6 2/2 2/2 2/2
At least 14 days notice of regular board meeting is given to all Directors. The EEEFHeRNASTRERRTRD THRATED
agenda and board papers are sent to the Directors at least 3 days before FTEES -ESEhHBETZESSRNREEREH
the meetings of the Board and board committees so that the Directors GHEXH  ELPEBRGHE=ZKRIERTEES &
have the time to review the documents. Directors can include matters for %%%ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁ MEFRE  EENLH

discussion in the agenda if the need arises. Minutes of meetings of the
Board and board committees are recorded in sufficient details that matters
considered and decisions reached. The draft and final versions of the
minutes will be sent to Directors within a reasonable time after the meetings.
Minutes of meetings of the Board and board committees are kept by the
company secretary of the Company and open for inspection on reasonable

notice by any Director.

All Directors are entitled to have unrestricted access to the advice and
service of the company secretary with a view to ensuring that board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Upon
reasonable request and appropriate circumstances, Directors can seek
independent professional advice to assist them to discharge their duties, at
the Company’s expenses.
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If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board had determined
to be material, the matter will be dealt with by holding a board meeting
with the presence of disinterested Independent Non-executive Directors
or a meeting of a board committee set up for that purpose pursuant to a
resolution passed in a board meeting.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, of whom four are Executive
Directors, one is Non-executive Director and three are Independent Non-
executive Directors. The composition meets the recommended practice
under the Code on CGP for the Board to have at least one-third in number
of its members comprising Independent Non-executive Directors. The
three Independent Non-executive Directors are persons of high caliber,
with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of accounting,
business management and pharmaceutical industry respectively. With their
experience gained from senior positions held in other companies, they
provide strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board. The biographies of the Directors are set out in
pages 25 to 31 to the 2009 annual report, which demonstrates the skills,
expertise, experience and qualifications.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
the three Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Ms. Li Kei Ling, the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Hung Yung Lai, one
of the Executive Director, are directors and ultimate shareholders of several
companies incorporated in Hong Kong and British Virgin Islands.

Save as disclosed above, the Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with each other. The balanced
Board composition is formed to ensure strong independence exits across
the Board which can effectively exercise independent judgement.
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The nomination committee will consider the appointment of new
Directors first by reviewing the profiles of the candidates and making
recommendations to the Board. New Directors appointed by the Board
during the year to fill a casual vacancy shall retire and submit themselves
for re-election at the first general meeting immediately followed their
appointment.

Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of two years and are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at annual
general meeting (“AGM”) in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”).

At each AGM, one-third of the Directors are required to retire from office
according to the Company’s Articles. As the Company has eight Directors,
at least one third of them shall retire subject to rotation, and barring
unforeseen resignation/retirement during a year, each Director is effectively
appointed for an average term of not more than 3 years. Mr. Gao Yi, Mr. Sik
Siu Kwan and Mr. Hung Yung Lai will retire at the forthcoming AGM.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on his first appointment to have a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable
legal requirements and other regulatory requirements and the business
and governance policies of the Company. The Directors endeavour to
give sufficient time and attention to the Group’s affairs and are continually
updated with legal and regulatory developments, business and market
changes and the strategic development of the Group to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities.

The Independent Non-executive Directors take an active role in Board
meetings, contribute to the development of strategies and policies and
make sound and independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and standard
of conduct. They will take lead where potential conflicts of interests arise.
They are also members of various board committees and scrutinize the
overall performance of the Group in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance.
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SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The management has the obligation to supply the Board and board
committees with adequate information in a timely manner to enable it to
make informed decisions on matters placed before it. Where any Director
requires more information than is volunteered by the management, each
Director has separate and independent access to the Group’s management
to make further enquires if necessary. Where queries are raised by
Directors, management will respond as promptly and fully as possible.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive officer
(the “CEQ”) of the Company are separated and are performed by two
separate individuals who have no relationship with each other to strike
a balance of power and authority so that the job responsibilities are not
concentrated on any one individual. The Board has appointed Ms. Li Kei
Ling as the Chairman. She has executive responsibilities and provides
leadership to the Board such as ensuring all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and received complete and reliable
information in a timely manner so that the Board works effectively and
discharges its responsibilities.

Mr. Gao Yi, an Executive Director and the CEOQO, is delegated with the
authority and responsibility for managing the Group’s business operation
and implementing the development strategies. Mr. Gao will present the
quarterly results to the Board. Variances analysis between the actual
performances and the budget targets are explained in the meeting. This
helps the Board to monitor the Group’s business operations and to amend
the targets when required. He will periodically present the updated market
situation, long term strategies and objectives of the Group at the Board
meeting to ensure all Directors are aware of the targets the Group achieves.
In addition, Mr. Gao will also present the coming year budget summary to
the Board for approval at the Board meeting held in December each year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The management provides explanation and information to the Board so as
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the approval by the Board.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the interim and annual
financial statements, and announcements to shareholders. The Board is
not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board therefore
continues to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the accounts.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcement and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to the regulators as well as the
information required to be disclosed pursuant to the statutory requirements.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has delegated to management the implementation of internal
control system as well as the review of relevant financial, operational and

compliance controls, and risk management procedures.

The internal control system has been designed to safeguard the Group’s
assets against loss and misappropriation; to maintain proper accounting
records for producing reliable financial information; to provide reasonable,
but not absolute assurance against material fraud and errors. The Group
has clearly defined the authorities and key responsibilities of each business
and operational unit to ensure adequate checks and balances. Policies
are established to ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations,
and industry standards. Rules and guidelines are set to control treasury
activities, financial and management reporting, human resources functions
and computer systems’ operations. Systems and procedures are also
established to identify, measure, manage and control different risks arising
from different business and functional activities.

The Board monitors and reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of its
internal control systems through a programme of internal audit. The internal
audit function is set up by the Company to review the major operational and
financial control of the Group in compliance with the established processes
and standards on a continuing basis and aims to cover all major operations
of the Group on a rotational basis. The internal audit team reports directly to
the Chairman of the Board and the Audit Committee.
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The Board also monitors and assesses the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget on an
ongoing basis.

Based on the assessments made by the internal audit team in 2009, the
Board and the audit committee of the Company considered that the key
areas of the Group’s internal control system are reasonably implemented
with room for improvement. The Group shall endeavor to further improve the
Company’s internal control system.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
management by the Board, with division heads responsible for individual
department’s daily operations.

Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to
the management include the preparation of interim and annual reports and
announcements for the Board’s approval before publishing, execution of
business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of
adequate systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and

regulations.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the nomination committee, remuneration
committee and audit committee. The committees’ terms of references
defined their functions and responsibilities have posted on the Company’s
website.

Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2009, the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) had Ms. Li Kei Ling as the committee’s chairman,
and the three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Pan Xue Tian, Mr.
Sik Siu Kwan and Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky as the committee’s members.
The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference are summarized as

follows:

i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experiences) of the Board on a regular basis and
to make recommendation to the Board regarding any proposed

changes;
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i)  toidentify suitable individual qualified to become Board members; and

i) to make recommendation to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or reappointment of Directors if necessary, in
particular, candidates who can add value to the management through
their contributions in the relevant strategic business areas and which
appointments will result on the constitution of a strong and diverse
Board.

During the year 2009, the Nomination Committee had two meetings to

review the renewal of Directors’ service contracts.

Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2009, the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) had Ms. Li Kei Ling as the committee’s
chairman, the three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Pan Xue
Tian, Mr. Sik Siu Kwan and Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky as the committee’s
members. The Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference are

summarized as follows:

i) to ensure that no Director or any of her/his associates is involved in

deciding her/his own remuneration; and

i) to make recommendations with respect to the remuneration of the
Directors and the senior management of the Company for approval by
the Board.

The Group’s remuneration policy bases on the market practice, the
qualification, duties and responsibilities of Directors and employees. In order
to attract, retain, and motivate high-performance persons, the Company
has adopted a share option scheme in 2003 to reward those participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 7 to the
financial statements and the details of the 2003 Share Option Scheme are

set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee had two meetings in 2009 to review and
recommend to the Board the salaries and welfare of the Directors.
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Audit Committee

The Company has an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) which
was established in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The Audit Committee comprises the
three Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company who among
themselves possess a wealth of management experience in the accounting
profession, commercial and pharmaceutical sectors.

As at 31 December 2009, the Audit Committee’s chairman was Mr. Sik Siu
Kwan, Mr. Pan Xue Tian and Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky were the committee’s
members. The Audit Committee’s terms of reference are summarized as
follows:

i) to consider and recommend the independence, remuneration,
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;

i) toreview financial information; and
i) to oversee financial reporting system and internal control procedures.

During the year 2009, the Audit Committee had two meetings to discuss
financial reporting matters and any areas of concerns during the audits.
The Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes
in accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements in the
review of the Company’s interim and annual reports.

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2009 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee before
recommending it to the Board for approval.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young has been reappointed as the Company’s external auditors at
the AGM on 8 May 2009 until the conclusion of the next AGM. During the
year 2009, the remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors for
audit service amounted to RMB1,000,000.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with
all shareholders. The Company establishes and maintains different
communication channels with its shareholders through the publication
of annual and interim reports and press release. Such information is also

available on the Company’s website.

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate
directly with the shareholders. The Chairman of the Board attends the
AGM and arranges the chairman of the committees or in the absence of
the chairman of such committees, another member of the committees
to be available to answer questions at the AGM. Separate resolutions
are proposed at general meetings on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of Directors.

VOTING BY POLL

Details of the poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to
demand a poll in compliance with the Articles and the Listing Rules 13.39(4)
are included in the circular to shareholders dispatched together with the

annual report.

The chairman explains the procedure for conducting a poll again at the
commencement of the AGM.

The Company will ensure that votes cast including proxy votes are properly
counted and recorded.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. LI, Kei Ling, aged 61, is an Executive Director and the Chairman of
the Company, and one of the founders of the Group. Ms. Li founded the
Group in December 1995 and was appointed to the Board in October
2002. Ms. Li is also the Chairman of Dawnrays International Co. Ltd.,
Dawnrays International Co. Ltd. ( 3 ¥ B B f% 5 A BR A &) ), Suzhou
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical
Co., Ltd., Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd., Dawnrays (Nantong)
Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd. and Dawnrays Pharma
(Hong Kong) Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of the Company. She is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
Ms. Li has over twenty years of experience in corporate management,
strategic planning, business operations and finance, in particular for
pharmaceutical enterprises in the PRC. She is responsible for supervising
the strategic management decisions to ensure good corporate governance
practices and business policies are established, and executing the overall
developmental strategies of the Group.

Mr. HUNG, Yung Lai, aged 65, is an Executive Director of the Company
and one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Hung founded the Group in
December 1995 and was appointed to the Board in October 2002. Mr.
Hung also holds directorship in Dawnrays International Co. Ltd., Dawnrays
International Co. Ltd. ( 3 ¥m B B A% 2 B R 2 @& ), Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd., Suzhou
Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd., Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science
and Technology Co., Ltd. and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd., which
are all subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Hung holds a degree from /&
S4BT (Shanghai Conservatory of Music). He has over twenty years of
experience in corporate management and corporate development, and has
participated in founding and managing of pharmaceutical and high-tech
enterprises. Mr. Hung is an executive director and the chairman of Sing Lee
Software (Group) Ltd., a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. LI, Tung Ming, aged 61, is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Li joined the Group in April 2000 and was appointed to the Board
in January 2004. Mr. Li also holds directorship in Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd., Suzhou
Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd. and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd.,
which are all subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li is also the supervisor of
Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Li has over twenty years of experience
in the pharmaceutical industry in the PRC, and began his career in
product development, promotion, sales and corporate management in the
pharmaceutical market in the PRC in 1980. Mr. Li has participated in new
product development of the Group and is responsible for liaison with the
Group’s academic network of medical experts and academic advisers.

Mr. GAO, Yi, aged 56, is an Executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. He joined the Group in July 2003 and was the
Executive Vice President of the Group. Mr. Gao was appointed to the
Board in January 2007. He also holds directorship in Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd., Suzhou
Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd., Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science
and Technology Co., Ltd. and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd., which
are all subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Gao is responsible for the daily
business operations and management of the Group. From 1994 to 2008,
Mr. Gao was the deputy general manager and general manager of Hebei
Union Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Zhuhai Economic Zone Li Kang
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. respectively each for five years.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEUNG, Hong Man, aged 35, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. He joined the Group and was appointed to the Board in
November 2005. Mr. Leung has started his business career in knitting
machinery since 1993. He has over 10 years’ experience in sales and
management positions and over 6 years’ experience in investment
management. Mr. Leung currently is the shareholder and the director of
Toyo International Investment Ltd., of which has been one of the substantial
shareholders (as required to be disclosed under Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance) of the Company since September 2005.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. PAN, Xue Tian, aged 73, is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Pan joined the Group in June 2003. He is a member
of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Pan is the vice president of F1 B & 77 &
(Chinese Hospital Association). Mr. Pan has extensive experience in drug
administration and supervision, medical hygiene and hospital management,
and has assumed various senior management positions in the Ministry of
Health of the PRC. He graduated from the medicine faculty of A7 B A28 &
P (Dalian Medical University of the PRC).

Mr. CHOI, Tat Ying Jacky, aged 41, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Choi joined the Group in September 2004. He
is @ member of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Choi has extensive experience
in financial and treasury management, corporate finance, investment and
audit. He earned his Bachelor degree of Business Administration from Hong
Kong Baptist University with a first class honours in 1990. Mr. Choi is a
practising member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and is currently serving as the chief financial officer of Hong Kong Mercantile
Exchange Ltd. and is an independent non-executive director of Norstar
Founders Group Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. SIK Siu Kwan, aged 42, is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Sik joined the Group in January 2007. He is also
the Chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company respectively.
Mr. Sik has more than fifteen years of experience in investment banking and
finance. He has held senior positions with a number of major international
investment banks, as well as a Hong Kong operation of a core securities
and investment banking operation of a state-owned PRC bank, responsible
for business development and regional business operations. Mr. Sik
achieved his Bachelor’s degree in engineering science and Master’s
degree in Arts from Oxford University in 1989 and 2006 respectively. Mr.
Sik is @ member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is an independent non-executive director of China Glass
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Sik is also
an independent non-executive director of Simcere Pharmaceutical Group
and China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Limited respectively, both listed on the
New York Stock Exchange.
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STRATEGIC ADVISER

Dr. XU, Kehan, aged 37, is a Strategic Adviser of the Company. He
joined the Group in November 2003 and was an Executive Director and
the Finance Director of the Company between March 2004 and March
2007. Mr. Xu holds directorship in Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Xu is responsible for advising corporate
investment policies and conducting strategic research for the Group. He
holds a Master of Business Administration from the University of Miami,
USA with specialization in investment. Mr. Xu received a Doctor of Business
Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

ACADEMIC ADVISERS

Mr. ZHONG, Nan Shan, was invited to join our Group as a Senior
Academic Adviser in April 2004. He graduated from 1t = K £ 8 £ [
(Beijing Medical University), and pursued his studies in the Respiratory
Medicine Unit of the Royal Infirmary, University of Edinburgh and the
Department of Respiratory Medicine of the St. Bartholomew’s Hospital,
University of London. He is currently the academician of the Department
of Medicine of The Chinese Academy of Engineering, the president of
Chinese Medical Association, the Professor of Medicine in Guangzhou
Medical College, the president of Guangzhou Association of Science and
Technology and the director of Guangzhou Institute of Respiratory Disease.
Mr. Zhong has been a medical adviser of the World Health Organisation
Advisory Panel since 2000. He has written 4 books and published over
120 papers in the last decade. After the battle of Severe Acute Respiratory
Syndrome (“SARS”), he was invited to be the lecturer in the annual meeting
of American Thoracic Society — “Management of SARS in China” in Seattle,
the United States.

Mr. MEI, Hua, was invited to join our Group as a Senior Academic Adviser
in April 2004. He graduated from &/ g & £ (Guangzhou South China
Medical College) and was qualified as the specialist in urology from 1t 7 &
ESRT [ B 25 — B8 (The First Affiliated Hospital of Beijing Medical University)
and Massachusetts General Hospital, USA. He has been the adviser and
professor of 1 1L K] B % — BB R IMNE (Department of Urology of
The First Affiliated Hospital of Sun Yat-sen University) since 1980 and the
director of 2 JIl & 1L 3 FR 91} B B (Department of Urology of Shenzhen
Sun Yat-sen Hospital) since 1986. Since 1991, he has been the adviser for
doctoral candidates in the First Affiliated Hospital of Sun Yat-sen University,
the committee vice president of FF2EEE E@INFRINEIEE (The Urological
Society of Chinese Medical Association) and the committee member of
Urological Association of Asia and American Urological Association. Mr. Mei
has also written 3 books about urology and surgery.
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Ms. LIU, Li Sheng, was invited to join our Group as a Senior Academic
Adviser in May 2005. She obtained a Bachelor degree of Science in Biology
from Yenching University, Beijing in 1950, and a Doctor of Medicine from
Peking Union Medical College, Beijing in 1954. From 1980 to 1981, she
pursued her postdoctoral research in the Cardiovascular Research and
Training Centre, University of Alabama at Birmingham. She is currently the
Professor of Medicine in Fu Wai Hospital, Chinese Academy of Medical
Sciences in Beijing, the director of Clinical Trials and Research Centre,
Chinese Hypertension League in Beijing, the vice director of the National
Center for Cardiovascular Disease Control & Research in China and the
president of Asian Pacific Society of Hypertension. She has been the
president and the honorary president of the Chinese Society of Cardiology
since 1988 and the president of the Chinese Hypertension League since
1989. Ms. Liu has also been the vice president of the World Hypertension
League and the co-chairperson of the Scientific Steering Committee of
Global Health Forum Cardiovascular Disease in Developing Countries,
World Health Organization since 1999. In 2006, Ms. Liu has been elected
to be the president of the World Hypertension League. She is also the chief
editor of the Chinese Journal of Hypertension and the members of a number
of editorial boards of journals in cardiology and hypertension.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZHU, Qin Sheng, aged 57, is the Vice President of the Company
and the General Manager of Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd.,
responsible for assisting the Chief Executive Officer in the aspects of
Nantong project, administrative management, human resources, logistic
management, safety and environmental protection. Mr. Zhu has over
twenty-five years’ experience in production management, financial
management and operations for pharmaceutical enterprises. He was the
deputy factory director of kM % = ZLZEMER (Suzhou Third Pharmaceutical
Factory) before joining the Group in April 1998.

Mr. LAM, Kam Wah, aged 56, is the Vice President of the Company. Mr.
Lam also holds directorship in Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.,
Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd. and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong)
Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences.
Mr. Lam joined the Group in December 1995 and he has over fifteen years
of experience in pharmaceutical trading and corporate management. Mr.
Lam is responsible for the international business of the Group and the daily
administration of the Company.
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Mr. YAO Shi An, aged 59, is the Vice President of the Company. Mr.
Yao graduated from Beijing Technology and Business University and has
accumulated over thirty years of technical and corporate management
experience in the chemical and pharmaceutical industries in the PRC.
Mr. Yao was an executive director and the executive president of China
Pharmaceutical Group Limited, before joining the Group in July 2006.

Mr. LI, Jian Xiang, aged 54, is the Vice President of the Company and
the General Manager of Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd., responsible
for assisting the Chief Executive Officer in the aspects of production and
sales, production planning and the overall operations of Suzhou Dawnrays
Chemical Co., Ltd. Mr. Li has over twenty-five years’ experience in
production management, engine facilities maintenance and operations for
pharmaceutical enterprises. He was the factory director of k)M &5 — & %5
(Suzhou Second Pharmaceutical Factory) before joining the Group in April
1998.

Ms. WU Ji Hong, aged 39, is the Financial Controller of the Group.
Ms. Wu is responsible for legal affairs in China and the Group’s financial
management including financial planning, capital budgeting, execution of
costing, budget planning and monitoring. Ms. Wu obtained a Bachelor
degree of Science from The Economics and Commercial Institution of
Center-South University with major in Economics and attained senior
accountant qualification in the PRC. Ms. Wu has over fifteen years’
experience in auditing, budgeting, financial management, corporate
banking, taxation, PRC’s taxation regulations and company law. Ms. Wu
joined the Group in July 2003.

Mr. Bo Hui, aged 48, is the Head of Sales and Marketing of the Group. Mr.
Bo graduated from the School of Pharmacy of Shengyang Pharmaceutical
University with a Bachelor degree in Pharmacy and completed the study of
the Postgraduate program in Enterprise Management from the School of
Business Sun Yat-Sen University. Mr. Bo specializes in pharmacology and
has accumulated over twenty years’ experience in pharmaceutical sales,
marketing and business development. Mr. Bo was the general manager of
Livzon Pharmaceutical Sales Company and the deputy head of sales and
marketing of Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Mr. Bo joined the Group in
August 2004.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
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Mr. CHEN, Jian Dong, aged 45, is the Head of Research and
Development of the Group. Mr. Chen is a qualified pharmaceutical
engineer and licensed pharmacist and has a Bachelor degree in Chemical
Pharmacology from A B 2%%} K2 (The Pharmaceuticals University of the
PRC) where he spent three years as an assistant teacher. He was the head
of the research centre and antibiotics workshop manager at &/ &5 /1 &4 24
8 (Suzhou Fourth Pharmaceutical Factory) and the head of the registration
section of the research and development department of &x/H P (b %55 T 3
BBR7AF] (Suzhou Chung-Hwa Chemical & Pharmaceutical Industrial Co.,
Ltd.) before joining the Group in April 2002.

Mr. SU, Guo Qiang, aged 40, is the General Manager of Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., responsible for the overall operations of Suzhou
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Mr. Su graduated from & & {t T &
Bt (Wuhan Institute of Chemical Technology) in chemical pharmaceutical
profession and qualified as a pharmaceutical engineer. He was the head of
research centre and the chief engineer of #k/M 25 — ZU%ER (Suzhou Second
Pharmaceutical Factory). He joined the Group in November 2001.

Mr. SHAO, Jian Liang, aged 46, is the General Manager of Dawnrays
(Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd., responsible
for the manufacturing facilities construction and overall operations of
Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd.. Mr.
Shao graduated from JT#kEHEEF AZ (Jiangsu Radio and TV University)
in fine organic chemical engineering. He joined the Group in June 1997.

Ms. PANG Kit Ling, aged 44, is the Company Secretary of the Company
and the supervisor of Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd. She is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an
associate of both The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Pang holds a
Master of Arts in Professional Accounting and Information Systems degree
from the City University of Hong Kong and has over 10 years’ experience in
the fields of accounting and administration. She joined the Company in July
2003.
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Report of the Directors

EZEHE

The board of Directors (the “Board”) herein present their report and the
audited financial statements of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the audited
financial statements on pages 45 to 122.

An interim dividend of HK$0.018 per ordinary share was paid on 16
September 2009. The Board recommmends the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.050 per ordinary share in respect of the year, to shareholders on
the register of members on 4 May 2010. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of retained profits
within the equity section of the statement of financial position.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interest of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements, is set out on page 123. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

DONATION

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to
RMB2,535,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE
RIGHTS

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and land use rights
of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in notes 14 and
15 to the financial statements, respectively.
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOAN

Details of interest-bearing bank loan of the Group as at 31 December 2009
are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company repurchased 184,000 shares of the
Company'’s listed securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
at an aggregate consideration of HK$127,960 before expenses. The
monthly breakdown of shares repurchased during the year were as follows:

Number

of shares

repurchased

Month of repurchase BBE A5 BEROEE
January 2009 —ZEENF—H 100,000
February 2009 —ZEENFRA 84,000

Total #at 184,000

The repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled. The nominal value
of the cancelled shares was transferred to the capital redemption reserve
and the premium payable on repurchase was charged against the share
premium account. The repurchases were effected by the Directors for the
enhancement of shareholder value in the long term.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities for
the year ended 31 December 2009.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity and note
32 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2009 the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to RMB267,106,000, of which RMB34,769,000 has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year. Under the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account of the Company of approximately RMB61,865,000
as at 31 December 2009 is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
share premium account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid

bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 17.03% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 4.47%. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 43.49% of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 16.90%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
Ms. Li Kei Ling

Mr. Hung Yung Lai
Mr. Li Tung Ming
Mr. Gao Yi

Non-executive Director
Mr. Leung Hong Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Pan Xue Tian

Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky

Mr. Sik Siu Kwan
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In accordance with the article 87 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Gao Yi, Mr. Sik Siu Kwan and Mr. Hung Yung Lai will retire by rotation
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM”).

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr.
Pan Xue Tian, Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky and Mr. Sik Siu Kwan, and as at the
date of this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 31 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Ms. Li Kei Ling has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of two years which commenced on 1 July 2003. Ms. Li’s service
contract was renewed for a term of three years which commenced on 1 July
2008 and is subject to termination by either party giving not less than three
month’s written notice. Ms. Li is currently entitled to director’s fee and other
remuneration from the Group totally HK$518,400 per year.

Mr. Hung Yung Lai has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of two years which commenced on 1 July 2003. Mr. Hung’s service
contract was renewed for a term of three years which commenced on 1 July
2008 and is subject to termination by either party giving not less than three
month’s written notice. Mr. Hung is currently entitled to director’s fee and
other remuneration from the Group totally HK$518,400 per year.

Mr. Li Tung Ming entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of two years which commenced on 14 January 2004. Mr. Li’s service
contract was renewed on 1 January 2010 for a term of three years and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less than three months’
written notice.. Mr. Li is currently entitled to director’s fee and other
remuneration from the Group totally HK$518,400 per year.

Mr. Gao Yi has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of two years which commenced on 1 January 2007 Mr. Gao’s service
contract was renewed for a term of two years which commenced on 1
January 2009 and is subject to termination by either party giving not less
than two months’ written notice. Mr. Gao is currently entitled to director’s
fee and other remuneration from the Group totally HK$986,400 per year and

a discretionary bonus payable at the absolute discretion of the Board.
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Mr. Leung Hong Man has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of two years which commenced on 1 November 2005. Mr.
Leung’s service contract was renewed for a term of two years commencing
1 November 2009, and is subject to termination by either party giving not
less than one month’s written notice. Mr. Leung is currently entitled to a
basic annual remuneration of HK$96,000. Save for the above director’s fee,
Mr. Leung is not entitled to any other remuneration.

Mr. Pan Xue Tian has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of two years which commenced on 1 July 2003. Subsequently, Mr.
Pan’s service contract was renewed for a term of two years commencing 1
July 2009, Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of two years which commenced on 30 September
2004. Subsequently, Mr. Choi’s service contract was renewed for a term of
two years commencing 30 September 2008, Mr. Sik Siu Kwan has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of two years which
commenced on 10 January 2007. Subsequently, Mr. Sik’s service contract
was renewed for a term of two years commencing 10 January 2009. Mr.
Pan, Mr. Choi and Mr. Sik’s appointments are subject to termination by
either party giving not less than one month’s written notice. Each of Mr.
Pan, Mr. Choi and Mr. Sik are currently entitled to an annual remuneration
of HK$120,000. Save for the above directors’ fees, the three Independent
Non-executive Directors are not entitled to any other remuneration.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group. There is no contract
of significance between the Group, its controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
were in existence during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
21 June 2003.The maximum number of shares permitted to be issued
upon the exercise of options under the Scheme was 80,000,000 shares
which was 10% of the shares of the Company in issue upon listing (unless
refreshed) and represented approximately 10.12% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of this annual report. The detailed
disclosures relating to the Scheme and valuation of options are set out in
Note 31 to the financial statements.

Movements of Company’s share options under the Scheme during the year
were as follows:

Number of share options
EhEge
At Granted  Exercised Lapsed At
1 January during during  duringthe 31 December
Name or 2009 the year the year year (d) 2009
category of SREER RZZBBNE £ R ER WZEEAE
participant AEH -B-H BRI B BAR(d tZA=t-8
Director £
Mr. Gao Vi BREE 600,000 - (300,000) - 300,000
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
3,600,000 - (300,000 - 3,300,000
Otheremployees ~ EfiES
In aggregate o) 1,900,000 - (800,000) - 1,100,000
10,100,000 - (5,712,000 (20,000 4,368,000
800,000 - - - 800,000
4,500,000 - (220,000) - 4,280,000
1,300,000 - (520,000) - 780,000
800,000 - - - 800,000
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
20,400,000 - (7,252,000 (20,000 13,128,000
Other participant ~ Efi$8%
400,000 - (400,000) - -

24,400,000 - (7,952,000 (20,000 16,426,000

BRESTE

RATRZEE=F XA+ — B RAERESTZ
(FET&1]) - BIRZET BT B AR E T BT TR AR 1D
&= # B /80,000,000 f% - #EE R AR AR LR
(BRIELCTEHT) B BTN A 10% » IR ARF KT E
AR RIEBHITIRAL10.12% - BT EINFIBE &
BERRE A (B R B B SRR IRE ST -

AER - HEIROALABRREHNT

Closing price of the

Company's shares (c)

KAFRBETER(C)

At

immediate

Date of grant Exercise date
of share Exercise period price hefore
options (a) of share options  of share  the grant
(dd/mm/yy) (dd/mm/yy) options (b) R
RiBhE RiE BRE e
B (a) E8s  TRED A-x
(B/A/%) (B/B/%) HKS HKS$

812104 28/12/05-2712/10 0.58 0.59
04/04/07  04/04/08 - 03/04/13 0.71 0.70

171104 17A1/05-16/11/10 0.63 0.62
2812104 28/12/05-2712/10 0.58 0.59
100107 01/09/07 - 31/08/12 0.72 0.68
04/04/07  04/04/08 - 03/04/13 0.71 0.70
100707 10/07/08-09/07/13 0.80 0.80
01/02/08  01/02/09-31/01/14 0.74 0.74
0912/08  09/12/09-0812/14 0.70 0.71

05/06/05  05/05/06 - 04/05/09 0.50 049
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(@ The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant

until the commencement of the exercise period.

(b) The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

(¢) The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at immediate date
before the grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing
price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of grant of the
options.

(d) Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme due to
resignation of employees.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed immediately before the
exercise date of the share options is the weighted average of the Stock
Exchange closing prices immediately before the dates on which the options
were exercised over all of the exercise of options within the disclosure line.
The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the dates on which the options were exercised by the Director and
other employees were HK$0.69 and HK$0.90 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and Chief Executive in the shares or underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers, were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name
£

Directors

5=

Ms. Li Kei Ling
FHER L+

Mr. Hung Yung Lai
RRRIE T4

Mr. Li Tung Ming
FERABLE

Mr. Gao Yi
BRIE

Mr. Leung Hong Man
REREREE

Notes
PiEE

EXEHRE

RARBEBRPLITR

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest
BENROHE - SHORERME

Directly Share Option
beneficially
owned

HEEERER

9,976,000

900,000

granted
BEEEN
BB

3,300,000

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of associated corporation:

Name of Director
BB

Ms. Li Kei Ling
FHERLL

Mr. Hung Yung Lai
FeRIE

Name of
associated
corporation
B LEER

Fortune United

Group Limited

Fortune United
Group Limited

Relationship with

the Company
HEANRNEE

the Company’s

holding company
RRARERRF

the Company’s

holding company
RRARERRF

Shares
il

Ordinary shares

L

Ordinary shares

Through
controlled
corporation
BB
REFE

342,072,000
342,072,000

56,000,000

60,000,000

Total
wy

342,072,000

342,072,000

65,976,000

4,200,000

60,000,000

Percentage of
the Company’s

issued share
capital
LERANE|
ERITRA
WEDH

43.50

43.50

8.39

0.53

7.63

PAREEE B () RABRIR D R VA A

Number of

shares
BRHBE

Capacity and
nature of

interest
5K
ERME

2 Through a controlled

corporation

BB 2 A

2 Through a controlled

corporation

BB 2 A

Percentage of
the associated
corporation’s
issued share
capital
1L
BRTRAK
ERa

50

50
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Report of the Directors

EZEHE

Notes:

(a) 342,072,000 shares are held by Fortune United Group Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. Keysmart Enterprises Limited, which is wholly-owned by Ms.
Li Kei Ling, and Hunwick International Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Hung Yung
Lai, are each beneficially interested in 50% of the share capital of Fortune United Group
Limited.

(o) 56,000,000 shares are held by Time Lead Investments Limited, a company incorporated in
the Biritish Virgin Islands. The entire issued share capital of Time Lead Investments Limited
is beneficially owned by Mr. Li Tung Ming.

(c) 3,300,000 shares options were granted to Mr. Gao Yi under the Company’s option
scheme adopted on 21 June 2003 and Mr. Gao is deemed to be interested in the shares
which will be issued to him upon his exercise of option, representing approximately 0.42%
of the Company’s issued share capital.

(d) 60,000,000 shares are held by Toyo International Investment Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung Hong Man and Mr. Leung Yiu Sing are each
beneficially interested in 50% of the share capital of Toyo International Investment Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the Directors
or Chief Executive had registered an interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share option scheme”, “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” above and in the share option scheme disclosures in note 31 to
the financial statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

i -

(@) 342,072,000 B {7 B — R IR RE B R A B MR8
A7) Fortune United Group Limited Fi#54 ° Fortune United
Group Limited #) & 25 (8 2= E 1% &2 + 2 & # /& 1) Keysmart
Enterprises Limited } £3 & @242 55 4 2 & # B /9 Hunwick
International Limited & 5 & & %A 50% ## % °

(b) 56,000,000 A& A& 15 E — 5K 1A B 65 4 B R A B sE A AL /9
A & Time Lead Investments Limited f7 # & ° Time Lead
Investments Limited () 2 S D BT AR Z R B EE R
%A -

© BEARAR-ZTZE=F A=+ AFEMZERET
Bl - =R AE R 3,300,000 EARIE - =R A
EITEZ B IRER S BTN 2 DR - AEAR

RIE BTN 0.42% °

(d 60,000,000 f& &) By — KA BB A2 A R G BIFE
BEBRARNEA - BFEBRIREARARNDIDE
TRABHRFER R RBR A S B EEA 50% s

B biESN  RARETEZB - SIEEERAEN
RRARHEEFRBEEENRD - HERDHES
o BEAAREE S R E DI 352 1 T AR
FRE LM AR EFETESFXSGNRETAANE
ARB R PR SOAR ©

ESBERODEFHES

Bt bt TRERCRERT 81 ) — 86 - [E = RAENIN K
MR R NOR R | — BRI RR M 31 Ak
BT EIRENEEN  FAABENES K
EVECAB SRR 18 B A F R ALE MUK A R A ik
HEFHNTERE RSO - RFTEREMZSE
TR ARE - HERA B SEA(AINRE QR L
ERZH  NSERRRBEAEMEABRE R
e



Report of the Directors

EZEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2009, the following interests or short positions in the

shares and underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the register

of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of

the SFO:

Long positions:

Name

=L

Fortune United Group Limited
Keysmart Enterprises Limited
Hunwick International Limited

Mdm. lu Pun
okt 22+

Time Lead Investments Limited

Toyo International Investment Limited

RBEREER AR

Mdm. Lo Mei Sai
BEMLL

Mr. Leung Yiu Sing
R

Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong
TELL

Notes:

Notes
st

FERRREMA TRIRG REERG A

3 <

m

A

%%?
!

ZENFT-A=1T—B REBSRPEED
3B IRANARRIFEMNEE T LM LR R

AR RARRER O fE S SR RS T -

3

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

BFANWROHE - B RERNE

Directly
Beneficially
owned

HEESER

342,072,000

56,000,000

60,000,000

Family
interest
REER

342,072,000

60,000,000

60,000,000

() The issued capital of Fortune United Group Limited is equally beneficially owned by

Keysmart Enterprises Limited and Hunwick International Limited which are in turn,

respectively, wholly-owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling and Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Executive Directors

of the Company.

Through
controlled
corporation
BB
REEFE

342,072,000

342,072,000

60,000,000

B

(a

Total
wny

342,072,000

342,072,000

342,072,000

342,072,000

56,000,000

60,000,000

60,000,000

60,000,000

60,000,000

RAERE AR ETER -

Percentage of
the Company’s

issued share
capital
RN
2RITRA
MBS
43.50

43.50

43.50

43.50

7.12

7.63

7.63

7.63

7.63

Fortune United Group Limited ) B 2 17 i% 78 3 Keysmart
Enterprises Limited & Hunwick International Limited ¥
5 B % % A - Keysmart Enterprises Limited & Hunwick
International Limited 9 Bl N R Rl HI AT TE R FHBL L+
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Report of the Directors

EZEHE

(b) Mdm. lu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and is deemed to be interested in the shares
of the Company held by Mr. Hung Yung Lai.

(c) The entire issued capital of Time Lead Investments Limited is beneficially owned by Mr. Li
Tung Ming, an Executive Director of the Company.

(d) The issued capital of Toyo International Investment Limited is equally beneficially owned by
Mr. Leung Hong Man, the Non-executive Director of the Company and his father Mr. Leung

Yiu Sing.

(e Mdm. Lo Mei Sai is the wife of Mr. Leung Hong Man and is deemed to be interested in the

shares of the Company held by Mr. Leung Hong Man.

() Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong is the wife of Mr. Leung Yiu Sing and is deemed to be interested in
the shares of the Company held by Mr. Leung Yiu Sing.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, no person, other than
the Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s interests and
short positions in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within

the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Li Kei Ling
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2010

b)  BWER LT RERREEENRS  WERARAERIE KR
BNARRROT AR

(©)  Time Lead Investments Limited B2 &0 2 21T R AN A 7]
—BHWITESTRALEERES ©

o HEBBRREFRIFNODSEITRAS AR R AR
TERRFRAERP 2 RRER S EFOERES -

@ BEEAEXIR/RERLENRSE HERARRERLE
FANARARD A o

() SRR T RRBRITENESE  BEAR SN RIEK T E
FANARARD A o

BREXEREEIN R_ZETAF+-_A=t—H I
BHMAL (RRRESERAHRI  BRRENE
BN EX [ EE MAAEN B K AAR R e &
wR | —8) BRENAR B SRR A HO R
ok R (RIREE S LB HDIE3B6IE T AER)

RANARERE

RIBARRESHD AHERRIBESMA > RAR
FHEZH  RRALHEARREHTRALRE
A 25% ©

R BLEm

KGRI EBITEERE - MEBMZERSRARA
BEERRRR  BREERRBFRAE LIRS -

RERESE

THE
E

B —F-TE=A=1A



Independent Auditors’ Report

B ZBMRE

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=7 K
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 45 to 122, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BRHRA (ER)BRLF
(EHSHBEMRINERLR)
2ERR

ANAZEEN O AL D BN 5 45 B 122 B RE 845 ($2A%)
BRAB(TAR D REMBAR (5B E£E]) W
L MMBBREREER_ZTAF+-_A=+—8
WiRE R ARFBHRRAREEEZZ A ILFENGE

B FEEZHKER RAEREHRNGEAS
MER  UREBSTBRRME LM AR -

ESRUBBRRARENERE

EFARARBERVHEREENRIZBEER
EIESY JE’JT&E@%ﬁi%@&ﬁgﬂﬁ”&fﬁi@ilﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁk
HE - EEEBRER  BEhEEEGHLERN
/&fciﬁﬁ\lﬂiﬁﬁ&&i\%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁﬂ*ﬁ - AR A
TEEBPNRFFRHERMERERFERBRAL : #E2
MEREENEHE  MREBEBEMELEAENER
fti&t o

_I D)

RBEHNERE

BB ERBRERMANEZEZSVHERERFELE
R AREEAERBERRE - R 2R RE R E
HiB R - RO T ERARENATAETAEMAL
BEIRBEFET -

BMEREEESMAGRMOF BRI ELE

FNZ o BUEERE R ETBERE ﬂiﬁ?ﬂ&%ﬂ
TEZ  UEBERTHEVHRRES N FEEME
AERFR PR o
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B ZBMRE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

30 March 2010

B RHITIE 7 AU BB TS SRR Pl 2 78 S I
BEMNERERE o T ENRZFBURRZEENH )
B - BRFHEERRGFRERMEBUHHRERTEE
AR R - £ EZSRRE - ZEEE &
HZARIRERAEEMA AWMU HRRAAEOAN
BRIES] - UREHEENBRZIER - BXIFRH QAN
NERZHIAMEER R B R - BRI BREHEEFAR
AOEFBRNAEERAEHNE AT E
1 URFHER B RAMEEIIHRAR -

BIARE - RAEGHNEZERERTEMEE NS
BAMEZE R R T ER -

=R

BPRBA ZEPBHRRERIEBEERY B HREER
EEMAAMRRARREBRR —TTAF+ A
=+ —BHMBHRRREEBEZ R EFENFER
Beneg  WERREEQREHNREREZAR
B o

RAETRIER AT
BEBFEN
EBETFIRSRE S
BlfR &F .0 2Bl 1848
B
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 December 2009 BZE_TZENF+_A=+—HILFE
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2009 2008
—EEAF —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR¥TT ARETIT
REVENUE WA 4 1,082,110 947,710
Cost of sales SHERAN (754,058) (691,047)
Gross profit EF 328,052 256,663
Other income and gain EH AU A Rz 4 4,595 5,072
Selling and distribution costs HENSIHER (101,206) (79,395)
Administrative expenses THEA (47,575) (43,796)
Other expenses Hfb & A (32,008) (22,485)
Finance costs B E A 5 (395) (343)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE AR A 6 151,463 115,716
Income tax expense FTiS TR 10 (33,119) (13,585)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 118,344 102,131
Attributable to: AR B IR e ¢
Equity holders of the parent [SYNGIL-ZEEST=IN 11 118,388 102,037
Minority interest DERR R (44) 94
118,344 102,131
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BATEBERER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS a8 AEN
OF THE PARENT BRER 18
— basic, for profit for the year — B URFEENFE RMBO0.1513 RMBO0.1290
— diluted, for profit for the year — 58 - UARFESENE RMBO0.1506 RMBO0.1284

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the REFHFIRR EHF BN P B HmKRMTE12 -

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 2009 BZE_TZENF+-_A=+—HILFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Exchange differences

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interest

REZHEWER

AR R
PE R

FEERBEHAM
2HERAHE

FEERBE
2HKEBE

WA R
SARBRHEA
DY

2009 2008
—ZEThE —ETNE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREETTT
118,344 102,131
(90) (2,477)
(90) (2,477)
118,254 99,654
118,298 99,560
(44) 94
118,254 99,654




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PBIR R

31 December 2009 MN—ZThF+—-HA=+—H
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Group Company
rEE AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAE ZZFTITN\F ZBBEAF ZZTIT)\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
PiiEE ARBTRT ARETT AR%¥®TR ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BE L&A 14 250,186 248,935 4 12
Land use rights T A 15 47,462 23,078 - —
Construction in progress fEETE 16 85,699 53,033 - —
Prepayments SEENE7S - 26,072 - =
Intangible assets mLEE 17 15,685 14,631 - —
Interests in subsidiaries A SPEPNGILE oL 18 - — 287,505 285,738
Deferred tax assets BETRIEEE 29 1,206 892 - —
Total non-current assets EmBEELREE 400,238 366,641 287,509 285,750
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 19 184,346 159,536 — —
Trade and notes receivables U E 5 K ZE I8 20 435,308 391,041 - =
Prepayments, deposits and AT - ZE Rk
other receivables HAb el GRIA 21 14,309 15,657 189 190
Financial assets at fair value BRBEEAARET R
through profit or loss 2 EE 22 5,814 3,404 5,814 3,404
Cash and cash equivalents Be KIREEEY 23 86,450 38,936 3,973 4,207
Total current assets MENEELRTE 726,227 608,574 9,976 7,801
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAG
Trade and notes payables B 5 REHFIA 24 350,455 281,428 - —
Other payables and accruals Htt R REGTEE 26 40,814 36,348 611 738
Bank advances for discounted bills $R1TEEIR Z AR 25 5,000 24,907 - =
Interest-bearing bank loan, FTERITER—
current portion —F RIS 27 1,761 = - =
Income tax payable FETERIS R 5,951 3,319 - =
Total current liabilities BB ERE 403,981 346,002 611 738
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFE 322,246 262,572 9,365 7,063
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT B ERZERAEARE
LIABILITIES 722,484 629,213 296,874 292,813
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank loan T ERITER 27 3,522 = - =
Government grants IRATHRER 28 1,120 = - =
Deferred tax liability BEFRIEEE 29 5,998 — — —
Total non-current liabilities IERE A BT 10,640 - - =
Net assets FEE 711,844 629,213 296,874 292,813
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

31 December 2009 R=-ZZNEFE+=-A=+—H

Group Company
rEE NN
2009 2008 2009 2008

—EEAE  —TT\F —FEAE  —TI)\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
i ARMTT ARETE ARMTT ARETR

EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity BARERFEEA
holders of the parent FEfhEz

Issued capital BEEITRG 30 83,649 82,964 83,649 82,964

Reserves e 32 592,871 518,100 178,456 182,372

Proposed final dividend FoR R HIAE B 12 34,769 27,477 34,769 27,477
711,289 628,541 296,874 292,813

Minority interest DERRE R 555 672 - =

Total equity RERAEEE 711,844 629,213 296,874 292,813

LI KEI LING GAO YI

ZHR (S

Director Director

EE EE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meEnBER

Year ended 31 December 2009 BZE_TZENF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent
BRTERRAAELES

Capital~~ Share Statutory  Exchange Proposed
Issued  Share redemption  option surplus — fluctuation final Minortty
captal  premum  reseve  reseve Confriouted  reseve  resenve  Refained  dividend interest Total
Notes BEf  account BN ERE  supls  ERER EX  pofs BE Tod JERE  equy
iF: RA RhEE RERE B SARR  ARE KBEE REEN RORS &5 R EagE

RVB000 RMBOOO RMBO0O RMBOOO RMBOO0 RMB'OO0 RMBIOO0 RMBO0O RMBOOO RMBOO0 RMBOOD  RMB'000
ARET ARETT ARBTT ARMTR ARMTL ARBTRL ARETR ARETL ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARETR

6002 LHOd3d TVNNNY

D
©

Bl EEs

(note 30) ote3) (oted?) (oted) (oted) (noted) (note 12)
(HizE30) (hiFs2) (e (W) (Wakse)  (Mstd) (Fi12)

A1 January 2008 RZTE/\E-F-H 84241 65370 1,249 2208 100,175 63153 (5,087) 288769 28204 518352 654 579,000
Proft for the year KREREA = = = = = - - 102087 - 102087 94 102,131
Other comprehensivg loss ~ EM2EEE - - - - - - 4 - - 4 -
Total comprehensive income  AER2ANGEEE
forthe year - - - - - - (241 102,087 - 99560 94 99654
Exercise of share options fIfEERE kil 173 106 - (199) - - - - - 10 - 10
Shares repurchased and ERRER(R
canceled % (450 8732 1450 - - - - ) - o) - (od®
Dhidends paidtominorty Bt ERERE
shareholder - - - - - - - - - - (76) (76)
Final 2007 dividend ER35CE
decired #4hs = = - - - - - -y 2y - (8
Dividend on sharesissued for ~ ~FEHE
employee share options t-A=t-RE
exercised after fifkHESEHE
31 December 2007 HEROBRE - - - - - - - (22) - 22 = )
Fouty-setfled shareoption W28
arangements ERERH Bl - - - 609 - - - - - 609 - 609
Iterim 2008 dhidend “RR)\ERERE 12 - - - - - - - (25 - (47 PG
Proposed final 2008 dvidend ~ #E=3F\&

KR 12 - - - - - - - g anm = = =
Transfer fom retained profs ~ BRFBEHRER - - - - - 108%8 - {1089 - - - -
At 31 December 2008 RIEENE

T-A=t-H 894  b7E84T 2699 262" 100,175° 74061 (TH14F 288383 27417 628541 612 629213
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEREEER

Year ended 31 December 2009 BZE_TZENF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

SRAERREARLES
Capital ~ Share Statutory Exchange Proposed
Issued ~ Shareredemption option surplus fluctuation final Minority
capital premium  reserve  reserveContributed  reserve  reserve Retained dividend interest Total
Notes B%7  account B5  BRE  supls ERESH EX  profits BE  Total JEER  equity
i kA& RMEE BERE BE OMABE MBS NEEE  SCHEH RERE &5t BE ERAE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RME'000
ARRTR ARBTT ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARNTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR

(note 30) (note 32) (note32) (note32) (note3?2) (note3?) (note 12)
(K3¥30) (M) (W) (WES) (s (M%) (Ht12)

At1 January 2009 RZTENE-F-A 82,964 57,684 2,699 2622 100175 74051  (7514) 288383 27477 628541 6712 629213
Proft for the year KEREH - - - - - - - 118388 - 118388 (44 118344
Other comprehensive loss Efp2AER - - - - - - (%0) - - (%0) - (%0)
Total comprehgnsive income ~ AEF2ENESEE

for the year - - - - - - (90) 118,388 - 118298 (44) 118,254
Exercise of share options fIfEERE 3 M 4283 - (795) - - - - - 418 - 418
Share repurchased and BERTERD

cancelled 30 (16) (102) 16 - - - - (16) - (118) - (118)
Dividends paid to minority EROHHRRRS

shareholder - - - - - - - - - - (13 (13
Final 2008 dividend ER-25)\E

declared RERE - - - - - - - - (14m) - (4
Dividend on shares issued for -~ ~EF/\F

employes share options ToA=t-RE

exercised after fImEERRE

31 December 2008 FEGTLE - - - - - - - (17) - {17 - {1
Eouity-setted shargopion~~~ ARE )

arangements ERER 3 - - - 325 - - - - - 325 - 325
Intein 2009 hidend “IEAERERE 12 - - - - - - - ) - () - (124%)
Proposed final 2009 dvidend ~ BE=ZENE

RS 12 - - - - - - - (%4769 34769 - - -
Trangler from retained profits SR BEImEEA - - - - - 130 - (130m) - - - -
At 31 December 2009 RIEENE
TZA=t-H 83649 610865 2715+ 2152+ 100,475 87,122  (1604) 346,446* 34,769 711,89 555 711,844
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * WEFEA EARK 592,871,000 ( ZFF/\ : ARK
RMB592,871,000 (2008: RMB518,100,000) in the consolidated statement of 518,100,000) B BFEEFE M BARREK L ©

financial position.



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHRESRER

Year ended 31 December 2009 BZE_TZENF+_A=+—HILFE

6002 LHOd3d TVNNNY

2009 2008
—EEAF —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR¥TT ARETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEHNESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: FRE AT & A - 151,463 115,716
Adjustments for: NI EEE S
Finance costs B 7% % A 5 395 343
Interest income B A 4 477) (936)
Dividend income from financial assets BBRBEAAREYEEZ
at fair value through profit or loss WEEERREMA 4 (135) (162)
Loss on disposal of items of property, LEME - BEKEE
plant and equipment IHH W EsiE 6 1,002 295
Impairment of trade receivables W E 5 R E 20 1,871 —
Impairment of intangible assets EmEERE 6 200 385
Impairment of property, plant and equipment Y% - BB R EIE B RE 6 1,137 —
Depreciation e 6 24,610 22,827
Amortisation of intangible assets MR B 17 1,476 1,131
Recognition of land use rights T {sh R RERERR 6 1,694 442
(Gain)/loss on disposal of financial assets HESBEBRUALBEIRY
at fair value through profit or loss s EER (Kes) EiE 6 (498) 276
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: ARE (W) EEFE
Financial assets at fair value FBRBRAAAENRZ
through profit or loss S EE 6 (1,871) 1,908
Equity-settled share option expenses VARG HE S - O B AR B <2 6 325 609
181,192 142,834
Increase in inventories FEEN (24,810) (35,101)
Increase in trade and notes receivables JEUNE 5 Ik 3 SR IEIE AN (64,174) (24,964)
Increase in prepayments TR FIE 0 (67) (6,058)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and e REAMEWIE
other receivables A, () 1,415 (3,847)
Increase in trade and notes payables JE B 5 R E B IEIE 67,156 34,021
(Decrease)/increase in other payables H A EAEIE CRid) /1N (1,755) 1,672
Increase in accruals FEET A &I 4,833 1,674
Income tax paid BRI (24,803) (12,432)

-

BhlUEeT

Net cash flows from operating activities LS EEENRESTE R 138,987 97,799
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEBRERER

Year ended 31 December 2009 BZE_TZENF+-_A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
—EThEF —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR¥TT ARETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETZEHNRESHRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B FI B 4 477 936
Dividend income from financial assets BUEEBER AR B
at fair value through profit or loss Z B EENRERA 4 135 162
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, LEMEIER - BE&
plant and equipment S AEIE B P18 50E 2,503 320
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEBEBIBRUARBENERZ
at fair value through profit or loss B & ER TS 58 2,295 3,968
Purchase of items of property, BEWZ -
plant and equipment B R EESEA &
and construction in progress fEETRE (61,852) (81,741)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE 17 (2,730) (1,515)
Purchase of land use rights HEE L AR (6) (295)
Purchase of financial assets at fair EERBIEBZUNALEYIER
value through profit or loss S EE (2,338) (4,688)
Receipt of government grant XS R BUR B R 28 1,120 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities KERSEENRSREFE (60,396) (82,853)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BEEENRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1TERE AR M AT 1S 578 4,189 1,024
Proceeds from bank loan EBSIRITE AT R HIR & 5,283 —
Repurchase of shares RN &%= NEIl ) (118) (10,182)
Interest paid BERFIE 5 (395) (343)
Dividends paid BENBRE (39,946) (40,822)
Dividends paid to minority shareholder BT VBT RS - (76)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEEELENIRSREFRE (30,987) (50,399)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BE&£RBEESZEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS #in,/ GRd) B 47,604 (35,453)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year &F#384 MIREZEY 38,936 76,843
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EREE) 2 2 FEE (90) (2,454)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRBESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 86,450 38,936
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERESEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS EER D AT
Cash and bank balances He MIRITEF 23 86,450 38,462
Short-term deposits RHESRTTIE R 23 - 474

86,450 38,936




2.1

Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R I RE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands on 20 September 2002 under the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) comprising the Group
underwent a reorganisation on 21 June 2003 to rationalise the Group’s
structure in preparation for the listing of the shares of the Company
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), pursuant to which the Company became the
holding company of the Group (the “Group Reorganisation”).

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
development, manufacture and sale of non-patented pharmaceutical
medicines including cephalosporin in bulk medicine and powder for
injection, their intermediate pharmaceuticals and system specific
medicines. In the opinion of the directors, Fortune United Group
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 11 July 2003.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss that have been measured at fair value. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

2.1

RAEH

Rinan (BB BRAR(TARRR DR -_TF -
FNAZTARBRASBHERARE(—NA—F
F=5 BREAREN)E_T-_EXHEEHS
M AERRARAF] o

BAEEERAECARERANEAR (AR
B DHRBASEBEARANENEEEBARS
FARAR (BT DERLET - R-BT=F
ANAZT—B  ARFKRSERAEENHEA
AR AR ([EEEA]D) -

S

REERFAEEREIRENEYRE  RIER
HE PRERARBERMDHAFANERR
- UWHE HEREERMERNEY T H
BERNEZREREY - E2RE REBK
MR A S A 32 &9 A &) Fortune United Group

Limited @ AR BIRREIEARAF] ©

ARARBR-SF=F+A+— BRB A E
R -

fmELE

BB EIERIARRESIRZMBEERRAER
BN GREMBHRKRIZELKAARAGE - I
RARBIR - REBIEAS - FTASELNE
AAEREATAL -

L2

AEEZGEMBHRACDREBER S ENES
2 ([EREHEARES ) RANBERMBHRS
A ([ BRI B RE R ) REE R RHEDIHE
MTEMARE -
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2.1

2.2

Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont’d)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2009.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being
the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies.
All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains
and losses and dividends resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full.

Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net
assets that were not held by the Group were presented separately
in the consolidated income statement and within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position, separately from the parent
shareholders’ equity.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRSs and
IFRIC interpretations as of 1 January 2009. The accounting policies
adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except
as follows:

IFRS 1 and IAS 27 First-time Adoption of IFRSs and IAS

Amendments Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements — Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or Associate
IFRS 2 Amendments Share-based Payment — VVesting

Condlitions and Cancellations
IFRS 7 Amendments Financial Instruments: Disclosures
— Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments
IAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements
IAS 18 Amendment Revenue — Determining whether an
entity is acting as a principal or

as an agent

2.2

21 RBEE(E)

BHEE
REMBHRRERARAMEMBRAREET =
H=1+—HILFENTBEHRE

MB AR mYER (AKERSEHIES R
EHEFEEANR X —EHFRA ARBEEEHRERIE
B o REMBARMERRAOBEMHELRR
AR SFBRTER—H - TEREARQF]
R - UEREBARRRRZEEMNRT - K
B MER R SIHE 2 o

DY R IR IF R AN R BB R AR RIS
RAIBEEFEERD - WHEKRS WERAEE
2| R AR BIOR KRS AERSIAAR - BEQ
AW BRES DR

B BERRENE D

BE_ZTNF—A—B AEESHEATUT
#a] MAHE T BIBR B 75 S 5 22 A R BEIFR I S ¥R 5
REZESRE KNS ECREAAEE 25
P E PR E — 3K - HEBATBRSD ¢

BRMBREEA  AARAES B RS EA RS
F1RLERE Bt EAltr A RIE A B H#E
SPERIE 27 5% ~R—EAR  REENE
(fB7TA) BAB LR ARELA

BRMBREER  UKOBERONT
F25%(BAIE) BB Rt

BRMBREER  HHIR  RE-HETH
ERAACHES) TANKE

RETEAES  HFELNES
(&E3T)

gt IR YA—EBER—ERES
F185% (BFIA) EEAAME



2.2

2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R I RE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)
IAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

IAS 32 and IAS 1
Amendments

Financial Instruments: Presentation
and Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation

Annual Improvements Improvements to IFRSs

Project (issued in October 2008)

The adoption of the new IFRSs had no material effect on how the

results and financial position for the current or prior accounting

periods have been prepared and presented except for the adoption

of the revised IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” (IAS 1).

The revised standard aims to improve users’ ability to analyse and

compare information given in financial statements. The adoption of the

revised standard has no effect on the results reporting to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. It does, however, result in certain
presentational changes in the Group’s primary financial statements,

including:

— the adoption of revised title “Statement of financial position” for
the “Balance sheet”; and

— the presentation of all items of income and expenditure in
two statements, the “Income statement” and “Statement of

comprehensive income”

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at
the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at fair values
at the date of acquisition, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest.

2.2

2.3

SRR RENES (&)

Bl &R EERA
£ 235 (F183T)

Bl &R IR - 25RFBHZ
£32% (B3] A) 22— AR a TR
REBE:ER REBEEELNET
£ 15 (B3TA)

FEXHIEE HZ BB B A BRI

BT (R=FBENFE+AET)

BB T BB &5 ERISE 1 5% [ ISR
W25 (BFREHERIE 1)) - RMZFK
ERIBER SRS ERIH A S R BT gF

HIHEE R BARANRE R 2RI AMEEX
TE o KERTER B ERCER P AN ML BT
BRABERREES - RNEERTERIEAREE
RAMBRRABEELEZE - R KE
RIS ASE T EMBIRROZMERETE
& B4

- FRMEEFTNER[PHIRAR]IRKETE
EREXR] R

—  POWMEERER - BN TR ) R [ 2 E e
mh 25IprE WA RFIAR

TEETHRME

EBaHREE

EBAHRABEEIE - WBKARERZSHH
AUEMNHNEE  BTORATARE AR
AENEBNARE  MEMEEREERAR
HIRAGHE - EEAHF - Tin D BEBIRERR
4 WA HBEERRENRBERIAR
B ARE R AR ERE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont’d)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of
the business combination over the Group’s share in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. If
the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
acquiree are assigned to those units.

When the Group acquires a business, embedded derivatives
separated from the host contract by the acquiree are not reassessed
on acquisition unless the business combination results in a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that

would otherwise be required under the contract.

23 FEREFTBRBE(E)

EBEOREE(E)

B BRI A (BIRFB G R AN R E G
WU AIBAEE - REMKARBERAEE
ZE) FHE o E UREERCAE R P U A B F
BENAAE  HEBRRERNKRERAER -

RETERE - BERRAREFNRERERE
SRR - AETTRERH - BB REXBAHE
EZRHBRAREEBRER A 62 15 R e
ZAEBRERSELEMN - MBARRANEE
BEKEMEERBEDBEELFTEN °

EAKEBABERLE  RRBARESOD
BEROIR ATUOT A TASW R URBRS B FE - BR
FREBAHSTEOLREDMBETHANRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R I RE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in subsidiaries that are not classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
functional currency of most of the Group companies and is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group
operates. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates ruling at the dates
of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. All differences
are taken to the income statement. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.

The functional currency of the Company, Dawnrays International
Co. Ltd. (“Dawnrays International”), Dawnrays International Co.
Ltd. (“Dawnrays International (HK)”) and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Dawnrays Pharma”), is the Hong Kong Dollar. As
at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of these companies
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (RMB)
at the exchange rates ruling at the reporting date and, their income
statements are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken

directly to a separate component of equity.

23 FEREFTBRBE(E)

MEAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, and sales taxes
or duty.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before

revenue is recognised:

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

Interest income

Interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income
Revenue is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

23 FEREFTBRBE(E)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R I RE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, by the reporting date, in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

23 FEREFTBRBE(E)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Taxes (Cont’d)

Deferred tax (Cont’d)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and

the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions
will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income over the period necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.
Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the income statement
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual

instalments.

23 FEREFTBRBE(E)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 23 FESHBERMUE(E)

(Cont’d)

Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and charged
to the income statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions

vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China (the “Mainland China Subsidiaries”) are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Accommodation benefits
Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre in Mainland China are

charged to the income statement as incurred.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants (the Company’s directors, employees of the Group
and other eligible participants) of the Group receive remuneration
in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby eligible
participants render services as consideration for equity instruments

(“equity-settled transactions”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with eligible participants is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined using a Black-Scholes-Merton
valuation model, further details of which are given in note 31. In valuing
equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any performance
conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the
Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The income statement
expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative

expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market condition is satisfied,

provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum
expense recognised is the expense as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the participants as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it vested
on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for
the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the entity or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled transaction awards are

treated equally.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share (further
details are given in note 13).

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits,
trade and other receivables, loan and other receivables.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in finance income or

finance cost in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont’d)

The Group evaluated its financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to sell them in the
near term is still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent to
sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances. The
reclassification to loans and receivables, available-for-sale or held to
maturity depends on the nature of the asset. This evaluation does not
affect any financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
using the fair value option at designation.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method (“EIR”),
less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the income statement. The losses arising from impairment

are recognised in the income statement in finance costs.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities are classified as held-to-maturity when the
Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. After
initial measurement held-to-maturity investments are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the income
statement. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
income statement in finance costs. The Group did not have any held-
to-maturity investments during the years ended 31 December 2009
and 2008.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed equity securities. Equity investments classified as
available-for sale are those, which are neither classified as held
for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. After
initial measurement, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-
sale reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is recognised in other operating income,
or determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss is
recognised in the income statement in finance costs and removed
from the available-for-sale reserve.

The Group evaluated its available-for-sale financial assets to assess
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term is still
appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these financial assets
due to inactive markets and management’s intent significantly changes
to do so in the foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets in rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans
and receivables is permitted when the financial asset meets the
definition of loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and
ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or maturity. The
reclassification to held to maturity is permitted only when the entity has
the ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial asset

accordingly.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale category,
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the EIR. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
income statement.

23 FEREFTBRBE(E)

MBEE (&)

=

A

Iy
I
o

(%)

TR EMBERE

A EMBIRE TS EMESZINTEMTEE
E - nBEAAHHEZRARE BA SRR AR
EEE BN BB BERIARAESIRZ RAK
& - I ESRRER P ERRIRAA B
& RERUSEIERARAHLEREFERN
ERREMEEKE - EEEURHER - 25t
FEEREEKERAEMEBWARER - B
EZREREEREBIAE B - REEER
PR M ERRER - WAAIHEERER
AR -

AEEFEREHAREEIHEENHEEN
ENEREARSEEE - EAKBERMSNEE
KER BN AT R AR EE 8 IR EAE B i &
FEBZSUBEER  AEBHSEIHIER
TRESHFHDEZEVBHEE - WBEEEMTA
ESMEYGRIREES - WA TR AR R H B
AEBRSBLARNBEXTEE - AIEHR
DRBEFMEWTIR - BEERNERERE
VEtERAVBEEEZIHAR - HAEHD
BAREIHAMKEE -

HRERHEERNERD BNV BEENS -
A REATERR HY 3% B B MV ] S Al Wi e s 1R 3R
RN R E RO RISRF IS o FrEsHROR
BIEEH IR 2R E 2 MM A Z R RA B X
B AR BRI F I - WX EERRETE
FORE - BIEF AR RER D ET Adka
%o

6002 LHOd3d TVNNNY

()}
(3]

BhlUEeT




Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE
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(Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Derecognition of financial instruments
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

e  The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.

In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset, is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that

the Group could be required to repay.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Derecognition of financial instruments (Cont’d)

When continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or
purchased option (including a cash settled option or similar provision)
on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may
repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option (including
a cash settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair
value, the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the
lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise
price.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in

a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate. If
a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance
income in the income statement. Loans together with the associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred
to the Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance
account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited

to finance costs in the income statement.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an
investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is to be
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’
against the period in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the income statement — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the
income statement; increases in their fair value after impairment are

recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced
carrying amount of the asset and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance
income. If, in a subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income
statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the income

statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case

of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans

and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification

as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial

recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the income statement. The Group
has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition as at

fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Financial liabilities (Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate method (EIR) amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance cost in the income

statement.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if, and only
if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets
at each reporting date is determined by reference to quoted market
prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Fair value of financial instruments (Cont’d)

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is
determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques
may include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference
to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the

same; discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended

use.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the asset as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and other equipment 5to 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation
are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R BT RE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Operating leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is
based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date: whether
the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or
assets.

Where the Group is the lessee, operating lease payments are
recognised as an expense in the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Land use rights

Land use rights represent prepaid land lease payments under
operating leases, which are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following the initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and
expenditure is reflected in the income statement in the year in which

the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets of the Group are assessed to be
finite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible assets may be impaired. The amortisation
period and amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life is reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes
in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for
by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the income
statement in the expense category consistent with the function of the

intangible assets.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 23 FESHBERMUE(E)
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(Cont’d)

Intangible assets (Cont’d)

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure
on an individual project is recognised as an intangible asset when the
Group can demonstrate:

e The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale

e ltsintention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

e How the asset will generate future economic benefits

e The availability of resources to complete the asset

e The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an
asset, a cost model is applied requiring the asset to be carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Any expenditure capitalised is amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding ten years, commencing from the date when the products
are put into commercial production.

The carrying value of development costs is reviewed for impairment
annually during the period of development.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R BT RE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 23 FESHBERMUE(E)

(Cont’d)

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and
condition are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials Purchase cost on a weighted-average
basis;

Finished goods and Cost of direct materials and labour and
work in progress a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on normal operating
capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s (“CGU”)
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement in those

expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Group estimates the asset’s or cash-generating units’ recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in

prior years. Such a reversal is recognised in income statement.

Cash and short-term deposits
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position
comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an

original maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as defined
above.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. The expense relating to any provision is presented
in the income statement. If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R BT RE

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the Company that
gives it significant influence over the Group; or (i) has joint control
over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred
toin (a) or (d);

() the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e);

(@ the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate

allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement

of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders

in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by

the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because

the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the

directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,

interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they

are proposed and declared.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

2.4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability

affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements which has the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 2.3. Initial capitalisation of costs is based
on management’s judgements that technological and economical
feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project
has reached a defined milestone according to an established project

management model.

Estimates and assumptions

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indications of impairment
for all non-financial assets at each reporting date. Non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indications that the carrying

amounts may not be recoverable.

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at
the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share-
based payment transations requires determining the most appropriate
valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of
the grant. This estimate also requires determining the most appropriate
inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share
option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about
them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for
share based payment transactions are disclosed in note 31.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R BT RE

2.5 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.5 BEEME N ARERRZER

REEW RN ZFEW IR T EAA T BMAE
WARAE R FR] RAERTBIFR A 5 3R 5 R -

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

IFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of International BRMBRERN  AARAERTFREER
Financial Reporting Standards ' F15% (LT
IFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time ERpBREERN  BINERYBREENE1REL

Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Additional
Exemptions for First-time Adopters 2

AL ACHES!

RAEIR BT £ - BX
RRAEZBIHE:

IFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based BREHAEEL  EANERMHREEIE2R
Payment — Group Cash-settled F2% (BFTA) KRG BEEGZ T —EE N F 2
Share-based Payment Transactions 2 BEHRHERZ IR F?
IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations BRIBREEN  ZFEH
F 35 (FET)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments © BRMBREEN SHTAS
ELoL
IAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures ° B e DERE 4% FErREs
(1&f53T)
IAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate BReElETS FaREVIBEE
Financial Statements (&E3T)
IAS 32 Amendment Amendment to IAS 32 Financial EoltS=Hpii] BB ERE 2 e F TA -
Instruments: Presentation FRREITR) S5 -HRH75°
— Classification of Rights Issues °
IAS 39 Amendment Amendment to IAS 39 Financial EiloSfpiai] EATRER e ERE 02 HTA -
Instruments: Recognition and E0R(EIR)  HHERE-ESEBHHER
Measurement — Eligible
Hedged ltems '

IFRIC-Int 14 Amendments to IFRIC-Int 14 ERyBRERE  BINERNBREREZEE 2B
Amendments Prepayments of a Minimum Funding ZEE-%E FURREE S EXBBITHE
Requirement ® F145% (B3TAK)

IFRIC-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets BRUBaERE SIS ERRETHAA
to Owners ' REg-RE
FATH
IFRIC-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities BRUBRERE UK ATAMECHERE"
with Equity Instruments * REE-RE
F195
Amendments to Amendments to IFRS 5 Non-current BREBasEl  EINERMEREENESRA AL E
IFRS 5 included Assets Held for Sale and FOREIR B HERHEERLUMLEES—

in Improvements

Discontinued Operations — Plan to

BRNE-TRN\F

to IFRSs issued sell the controlling interest in a T A EE T %
in May 2008 subsidiary HEERAEA

ABHERFA AR

6002 LHOd3d TVNNNY

7

©

BhlUEeT




QILINIM (SONIATOH) TYOILNIOVINEYHA SAVHNMYA

®
o

(87 W B (k) Drigthnes

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

2.5 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Cont’d)

Apart from the above, the IASB has issued Improvements to IFRSs
2009 which sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs primarily
with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. The
amendments to IFRS 2, IAS 38, IFRIC-Int 9 and IFRIC-Int 16 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 while
the amendments to IFRS 5, IFRS 8, IAS 1, IAS 7, IAS 17, IAS 38 and
IAS 39 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010 although there are separate transitional provisions for each
standard or interpretation.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

o o A~ o N =

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these
new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations will have
no material impact on the results and financial position of the Group
except for the adoption of IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
and IAS 27 (Revised) Consolidatied and Separate Financial
Statements. IFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting for business
combination for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 January
2010. IAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment on changes
in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services. There is one reportable
operating segment: the manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical
products. Management monitors the operating results of its business
units as a whole for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net invoiced
value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts.
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2 RZZ—FEF—F— AR RRARNFERRER
e RZT—FE- B AR RARNFERRER
¢ REZE-TF+ ARz RRMOFERRER
s MN-B——F— B2 RARNFERRER
o RZZ—=F— Bz RRRNFERMER

RATEERE - FAZFIR] LERTER -
BRI AR TS H A KB RE MBI
BREATE - HERMBEIR GRS ERISE 35
(RRIEFT) 56 0t RBIFR G ST RIS 27 5% (K&
71 &R MBI MRS - BIREI S IRE L
A3 (BB A ERBERARAR _F—
TE-A-BRZROEFEHOSFRE -
R TR 27 3k (RIERT) i B R AN M
BRARRARRESHNETRENR

2 EEH
AEEREFEMREERMREE D - U E
BIE - AEEB—ERRENE  RERHER

BER EEEEREREBEMMNKQEREE
AMEHEIRAD L R RIR R ZREK

WA ~ B A R i

WA(REEEXR)IEHEERIGRES - BS
FHIMERFE



REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN (Cont’d)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gain is as

follows:

Revenue
Sale of goods

Other income

Bank interest income

Dividend income from
financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Foreign exchange differences

Government grants

Tax refund for reinvestment

Others

Gain
Gain on disposal of financial
assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Fair value gains, net:
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank advances
for discounted bills
Interest on bank loan

i

A
HEER

Hitbg A

RITABHA
BRERIARAESIRZ
MG EENREHEA

[E R

B K
BB HEN
HAl

Wz

HEBBIERANAETIR

Z BB E R
DAEWRA - HER

FERBRARAET
R EE

RITAERRIBEFA B

RITEFRAE

4,

Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R BT RE

WA -~ B AR Wz (48)

REFEWA - EpBARKRZAFTAT

Group
£33
2009 2008
= —TTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
1,082,110 947,710
477 936
135 162
- 1,692 >
677 350 z
- 1,247 e
937 685 5
2
2,226 5,072 g
81
|1
"
498 - u
_m
o
1,871 -
2,369 -
4,595 5,072
M8 M
Group
REE
2009 2008
—2BAE  —TI)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBETT
391 343
4 _
395 343
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6.

Notes to the Financial Statements

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

BTSRRI EE

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Recognition of land use rights *

Research and development costs:
Amortisation of intangible assets **
Current year expenditure

Minimum lease payments
under operating leases:
Buildings

Auditors’ remuneration
Employee benefit expense
(including directors’
remuneration (note 7)):
Wages and salaries
Equity-settled share option expense
Retirement costs
Accommodation benefits
Other benefits

Foreign exchange differences, net
Impairment of trade receivables
Write-down of inventories

to net realisable value
Impairment of intangible assets ***

Fair value (gain)/losses, net:

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Bank interest income
Loss on disposal of items of

property, plant and equipment
(Gain)/loss on disposal of financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss

BEEFERA
e
nE - BERRERESE
TibfE AR
RN FAEMA
BV BESE"
AEEXH

RERAT 2 &ERSE -
BT

Gl e
EEREFRX
(BRRE=MS (7)) :

TERFE
AR A S 9 O BB B B 52
SRIRRCA
EFEE
Hian

RN 5 BRI E
ﬁgw%&gﬂ%fﬁ;%{a

B EERERRE™

DB (kER)/ BRFE
BBRBRAAAE
SR B EE

RITHBBA
HEWE - B kR
FHEMER
HEFEBERURAETR
ZIBEE W),/ BE

6. PFRBLADGRF

AEENBRBADRF R, (GEA) FIEE

B
Group
FEE
Notes 2009 2008
BT ZEENF —ET)N\E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFT
750,454 688,288
14 24,610 22,827
14 1,137 =
15 1,694 442
17 1,163 855
22,333 15,986
23,496 16,841
1,750 2,085
1,000 1,000
64,222 54,857
325 609
9 6,580 5,672
9 2,603 2,271
9,435 8,641
83,165 72,050
108 (1,692)
20 1,871 -
19 1,548 2,642
17 200 385
(1,871) 1,908
477) (936)
1,002 295
(498) 276



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R BT RE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont’d)

*%

*hKK

The recognition of land use rights for the year is included in
“Administrative expenses” on the face of the consolidated income
statement.

The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is included
in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated income
statement.

The foreign exchange differences, net for the year is included
in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated income
statement.

The impairment of intangible assets for the year is included
in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated income
statement.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing

Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as

follows:

Fees e

Other emoluments: E A EE
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ # &  JEBI R EWFIZE
Equity-settled share option expenses VARRHE 32 -1 ) B AR A 7 =2
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B

6.

BRELATERI (42
© ERN TR EERG AR SRR

[TTRER] -

o EANEVEESET AR RERN R
mEM] -

o FERRE S ERFREA AR WERE [E
wEM] -

e ERMETEEREBRGT ARa KSR

B [EAMER] -

EEME

RIE_EMAR B R A B GRS 161 S0 AT R SR AR
EEMemT:

Group

rEE
2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARMET T

571 579
2,004 1,981
84 141
52 52
2,140 2,174

2,711 2,753
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7.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont’d)

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

year were as follows:

Mr. Pan Xue Tian EBMRLE
Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky BEEREA
Mr. Sik Siu Kwan EEJKHRSTAE

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent

non-executive directors during the year (2008: Nil).

(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director

2009 “EThE

Executive directors: FHITEE :
Ms. Li Kei Ling FHRET
Mr. Hung Yung Lai FRRIE R
Mr. Lii Tung Ming FRALE
Mr. Gao Yi BREE

Non-executive director: HHITEE -
Mr. Leung Hong Man RRRESLE

(a)

BYFHTES
AEFBIFRNTESNESWT ¢

2009 2008
—EEBAF —ZBT)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARMET T
106 107

106 107

106 107

318 321

REE B E N B IF T E S R A B

E(ZFENF 8-

(b) HITEER—EFHTES
Salaries,

allowances Employee Pension

and benefits share option scheme
in kind benefits contributions Total
Fees  #& 28  UREXS E{f£ remuneration
HeE REWNE  WESERN B S MenE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET ARBT T AR®ET R ARET T
42 402 - 13 457
42 402 - 13 457
42 402 - 13 457
42 798 84 13 937
168 2,004 84 52 2,308
85 - - - 85
253 2,004 84 52 2,393




Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R BT RE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont’d)

(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director (Cont’d)

(b) BITESER-EFATESE(H)

Salaries,
allowances Employee Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
in kind benefits  contributions Total
Fees  #& 2B DABESA RIKE  remuneration
we REDNzE= H{EE TR HE 5 esE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
2008 “TT)\F
Executive diirectors: HITEE :
Ms. Li Kei Ling FHRLTT 43 407 - 13 463
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERME A 43 407 - 13 463
Mr. Li Tung Ming FRALE 43 407 - 13 463
Mr. Gao Yi BRAE 43 760 141 13 957
172 1,981 141 52 2,346
Non-executive director: HHTEE -
Mr. Leung Hong Man RRRESLE 86 - - - 86
258 1,981 141 52 2,432

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed

to waive any remuneration during the year.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2008:
two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 7
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2008: three)
non-director, highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R EEYHE

Equity-settled share option expenses LARR #E S 1< B0 B AR i A =
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B

FAMBESFHRXFAERRTAMSOLE

8. HUBRSHES

FARUGRRFEERE_(M(ZFTN\F: =
f)EF  FBEHNLEXHET - A T =1 (=F
TNF 1) FEERSFHEIERFANHH

m
Group
rEE

2009 2008

—EENF —EENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARMET T

1,753 1,681
52 97
34 34

1,839 1,812
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont’d)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,00075 7T

During the year, no share option was granted to any non-director,
highest paid employee in respect of his services to the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND ACCOMODATION
BENEFITS

In compliance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(the “MPF Ordinance”), the Company and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong
Kong) Limited have participated in the MPF scheme, a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee, to provide
retirement benefits to its Hong Kong employees. Contributions to
the MPF scheme are made in accordance with the statutory limits
prescribed by the MPF Ordinance.

As stipulated by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) state
regulations, the Mainland China subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement scheme. All employees are entitled to an
annual pension equal to a fixed proportion of the average basic salary
amount of the geographical area of their last employment at their
retirement date. The Mainland China subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the local social security bureau at 20% to 22% (2008:
20% to 22%) of the previous year’s average basic salary amount of the
geographical area where the employees are employed by the Mainland

China subsidiaries.

The Group has no obligation for the payment of pension benefits
beyond the annual contributions as set out above.

hfus SRS (&)

HeSEN T T IENIEEERESHME T
RAZLAT :

Number of employees

EEAB
2009 2008
S 1IN G
3 3

TR BEAFEFEFHERRLR/AKER
TR T B

RUKBANREEEF

BRCEFIERE SBR[ RTESHREI DA
BE  ARAIRERRAE(ER)BRAFZMA
— RS E (RBELEEATEZERER
A - REREERMERAKRERN - MBRESF

EIEH TR B TR S (R PIPTRT B IR E R
BRE °

BHRBEZFUERBATE - FEAERBAFAR N
BERREE - FTAREBRERKBHEEEZIR
HEREB TR P E AT S EE Ll &
WEERAKE - FEAENBARARNE LS
REEBER - HEUREEZERTEAEHBA
AlMO[E A FHFIEAFT &R 20% £22% (=ZF
TN\F : 20% E22%) 5TH ©

B B EEHFON - ARE W EEG T E A
RIRGEF] -
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND ACCOMODATION
BENEFITS (Cont’d)

According to relevant rules and regulations of the PRC, the Mainland
China subsidiaries and their employees are each required to make
contributions to an accommodation fund at 7% to 12% (2008:
7% to 12%) of the salaries and wages of the employees which is
administered by Public Accumulation Funds Administration Centre.
There is no further obligation on the part of the Group except for such

contributions to the accommodation fund.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had no significant obligation apart
from the contributions as stated above.

INCOME TAX

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31
December 2009 and 2008 are:

Current income tax RO E
Current income tax charge EHIPEH X H

Adjustments in respect of current
income tax in previous years

Deferred income tax (note 29) EREFE (M17E29)
Total tax charge for the year RELHIES AR

Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999 Revision)
of the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained an undertaking
from the Governor-in-Council that no law which is enacted in the
Cayman Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profits or income or
gain or appreciation shall apply to the Company or its operations. The
undertaking for the Company is for a period of 20 years from 8 October
2002. Accordingly, the Company is not subject to tax.

BRBEFEEHMEHAEE

10.

RAKBEFNREFERN (&)

B E R B REAR A RER - RRKEREAR A
kEERESEAKRREENFERIENTHE
12% (ZEENF 7% =12%) A—HHAES
EERLEENERESHK - BRZEBERARE
BESHHERIN  NEBUWEEMEE o

RIEZNF+-A=+—8 ' R LAz -
AEFEWEEMEBRNEE -

FriS®t

HE_ZTTZNFR-_TTN\F+-_A=+—H1
FEMSHEIEOEZERBLIOT

Group

rEE
2009 2008
—EZhEF —TTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
22,512 13,654
246 (45)
10,361 (24)
33,119 18,585

REFAEHERBHREE(—NNANFERTN)E
6% ARFEEFRESRITHRERE
FERELEEREARBHEEHH S
A WA~ S SR ERR - SRR BREGER
H-ET_F+ANBBRER_TF - Bt - &
NEIHERB
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI RE

10. INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

The subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) is not
subject to income tax, as such subsidiary does not have a place of
business (other than a registered office only) or carry out any business
in the BVI.

The Hong Kong subsidiaries are subject to a statutory corporate
income tax rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) under the income tax rules
and regulations of Hong Kong. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax
has been made as the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2008: Nil).

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law with effective from
1 January 2008, the Mainland China subsidiaries are all subject to
income tax at the rate of 25% on their respective taxable income.

On 21 October 2008, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical”) was qualified as a High-New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”) of Jiangsu Province. As a result,
Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical is entitled to a concessionary rate of
income tax at 15% for three years commencing 1 January 2008.

Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical”)
is exempted from corporate income tax of the PRC for the two years
starting from the first profitable year of operation, after setting off
losses carried forward, and are entitled to a 50% relief from corporate
income tax of the PRC for the following three years. As Suzhou
Dawnrays Chemical is in its fifth profitable year of operation, it is
subject to corporate income tax of the PRC at a rate of 12.5% in 2009.

All other subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to the corporate

income tax rate of 25% in 2009.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

10. FREH (&)

TRTE B HE F BT S R T B SZ A P 8 2 B 2R A
st - AREMBARNRBERRE ST &
LR R (ERE MR FRERRIN) AR B EA RS

REBEFEOMEHRANERD - FEKERA
BREFLEMERE166%(—FFT/\F:
16.6%) B - AR ARERAFEERBILE
ELEERVOEH] - R BB BB G E 5
BT NF HE) -

RER-_ZENF— A —BRER T EEEN
BH0E - hEAMEM B A RERES B BRI
AR 25% PSRBT

RIEZNF+TAZ+—B  #NEIRRNERR
AR ([FRM R EEE | ) EEUT &8 STl (R 3
([EFrMEE])ER - Bt - FRMNRIRERES
BE-ZZT\F— B —HEN=FANZEX15%H
BEMEHE -

HMRIETARAR ([HMRBCTDAE
(ERE R FEEAERRT R RAEHME
(RAEARFEBRR)  YERR=-FHRES
e B PTISTE50% © BN FLER N RiR1L
IMERFREENFE YR _FTThFRK
12.6% TR B B B EMAFH -

RPEBERENAEELHBARR _ETNFA
12 25% TR R A D ZEFTISH ©

RIBHBEIBEMFTOE - P BRI NS
KRECEAIIFREETIRNRE - AIZ10%H)
MEBRTAI - ZREB —TENF—HA—H
REN G WERAR-_ZTLF+-A=+—H%
BEA o fin B A ERHNE A B P RLAE R
ERF BB 0E - A RARENENHREK - &
SEENERTERS% - Bt - B -TFN\F—
A—B#  AEBARETBEAEKZHHTER
RIPTEE AR H i 2 AL RO RLUE BT TR TR N HY
&%
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Br RS R BT RE

10. INCOME TAX (Cont’d) 10. FR8%L (&)

HE_ZTTZNFR_TTN\F+-_A=+—H1
FERIAS G515 FI SR AR B AR 1 R 5

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting
profit multiplied by the PRC’s domestic tax rate for the years ended 31

11.

December 2009 and 2008 is as follows: e CNE
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEAF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARBFIT
Accounting profit before income tax BRETSBIRTE & 151,463 115,716
At the PRC’s statutory income =2 BUA R PTS B BE X 25%
tax rate of 25% (2008: 25%) ZETNF : 25%) 37,866 28,929
Tax effect of profits entitled to tax A ZFHIEEA S 05 1) k& M A
concession or lower tax rate BETRERE 2 HGE
enacted by local authority (15,709) (18,417)
Effect on opening deferred it S 3 N F HEAE T I8 A 52 22
tax of increase in rates - (615)
Tax credit for purchase of Bl ER BT RS
domestic equipment (562) (2,750)
Effect of withholding tax on the REFERBEMMEB AR ZA]
distributable profits of the DEAEZ EIB 2
Group’s PRC subsidiaries 10,675 -
Adjustments in respect of current BREBTFEEHEHR 2 AE
income tax of previous years 246 (45)
Expenses not deductible for tax Gt ib-a 578 210
Effect of temporary differences RIERERR RN R
not recognised - 366
Tax losses not recognised RIERBIEEE 649 1,021
Tax losses utilised from previous periods A ARTE B EE (624) -
Others EAth - (114)
At the effective income tax rate RERFSHIH%X21.87%
of 21.87% (2008: 11.74%) (ZZEZNF : 11.74%) 33,119 13,585

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

PARENT

11.

6002 LHOd3d TVNNNY

8

©

BhUEeT

A RS E ABERT

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for
the year ended 31 December 2009 includes a profit of RMB40,039,000
(2008: RMB35,762,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 32(b)).

HE_ZTNAF+-_A=1t—BHIAEEFAF
eSS ey e D Lk A= NG [ E
# % F A R#E 40,039,000 T(ZZFZENF : AR
# 35,762,000 7T ) (Ff7E 32(b)) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R IR R M AL
DIVIDENDS 12. BRE
Company
PN
2009 2008
—EEAF T N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFIT
Interim — HK$0.018 (2008: HK$0.018) LBARAR S : RHARRE : 0.018 BT
per ordinary share —ZEZTN\F 0018 L) 12,452 12,576
Proposed final — HK$0.050 FORARHARR S : 0.050 7T
(2008: HK$0.040) per ordinary share (ZZZ)\F : 0.04087T) 34,769 27,477

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 782,344,219
(2008: 790,999,858) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year. The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

13.

BRE R AR BFHAR R BRERNEERBER
SiRB -

BAREBRESSEEABGEREFN

BRERBFRIZE AR EBRERTE ARG
NERm A R ERD BT LD 2 M-
HRkE 782,344,219 (ZFZF )\ : 790,999,858
R)EFHE -

BRERERANRIZY AR T BRERTE AR
MEZAFE R R AT N B 31T & AU 0 2 AN
RFHRE - RIETEMEBARAR D 2 ¥
REBEERIETEERERBNNFRADHITE
BARAE - N ERIRERTTE ISR AEE(E R
EAERMEBRE S BERTHEBRZ INEFS
Pegs o



Notes to the Financial Statements

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

BA RS R AR M =

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (Cont’d) (&

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

Earnings

Profit attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent

Shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the basic earnings
per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted
average number of ordinary shares:
Share options

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares adjusted for the effect of dilution

T RBIEHEBRERRN L EE R ERAF

B U K B RS
2009 2008
—RBRE  —TT)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARETTT
ZR
B RAREBRERTAE ARG R
118,388 102,037
Number of Shares
RHE2
2009 2008
—EZhEF —TTN\F
Thousands Thousands
1L fFAL
B4
BErtE SRR EARAF) 2 i
T35 AR AR X
782,344 791,000
BEEE — ETH
TR
e 4,012 3,745
M 2EL AR 2
T35 AR AR X 786,356 794,745

13. BAAEERERFAAREERER

J
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Notes to the Financial Statements

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost:

As at 1 January 2008

Additions

Transferred from
construction in
progress (note 16)

Disposals

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2008
and 1 January 2009

Additions

Transferred from
construction in
progress (note 16)

Disposals

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2009

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
As at 1 January 2008
Depreciation provided
for the year
Disposals
Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2008
and 1 January 2009

Depreciation provided
for the year

Impairment

Disposals

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2009

Net book value:
As at 31 December 2009

As at 31 December 2008

MR
14. Y% - BERRZE
Group
KEE
Machinery
and other
equipment Office Motor
Buildings ##ER  equipment vehicles Total
BF HitRE  BAERE AE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETTT AR®T T AR®ETR ARET T
B
RZZTT\F—H—H 96,077 200,288 7,987 10,247 314,599
NE 352 6,973 814 637 8,776
FRTIZEE
(i3 16)
20,179 20,389 20 - 40,588
& - (1,741) (248) (208) (2,197)
ERRE - - (39 - (39
R-EBEN\F+=-A=1+—-H
K=EERF-HA—-H 116,608 225,909 8,534 10,676 361,727
NE 246 5,317 501 755 6,819
FRTIZEE
(i3 16)
5,142 18,257 285 - 23,684
& (94) (10,118) (1,307) (691) (12,210)
ERRE - - 1) - 1)
R-EBEAF+=-A=1+—-H 121,902 239,365 8,012 10,740 380,019
RAHERRE
RZZTT\F—H—H 19,108 61,835 4,671 5,968 91,582
FRMERE
4,394 16,041 1,116 1,276 22,827
& - (1,182) (213) (187) (1,582)
fE X AR - - (35) - (35)
R-EBEN\F+=-A=1+-H
k=EEAF-HA—-H 23,502 76,694 5,539 7,057 112,792
FRMERE
5,698 16,779 909 1,224 24,610
e - 1,137 - - 1,137
& (39 (7,350 (770) (546) (8,705)
fE X AR - - 1) - 1)
R-EBEAF+=-A=1+—-H 29,161 87,260 5,677 7,735 129,833
BREFE
R-EBEAF+=-A=1+—-H 92,741 152,105 2,335 3,005 250,186
R-ZEENF+-A=1—-H 93,106 149,215 2,995 3,619 248,935
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BTSRRI RE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

Cost:

As at 1 January 2008
Disposals

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2008
and 1 January 2009

Exchange realignment
As at 31 December 2009

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
As at 1 January 2008

Depreciation provided
for the year

Disposals

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2008
and 1 January 2009

Depreciation provided
for the year
Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2009

Net book value:
As at 31 December 2009

As at 31 December 2008

B
R_ZEZN\F—-H—H
HE

bEE 5 B

R-ZEENF+=ZA=+—H
R=—ZZThE—A—H

PEE S R

R-BBAE+=A=+—A

RETTEREE :

R=ZZNE—H—H

FRITERE

HE
PEE S R

R-ZEENF+=ZHA=+—H
R=—ZZTh&E—A—H

FRITERE

PEE S R

R-ZEBAFETZA=1—H

BRMEFHE :
R-ZEBAFE+TZA=1—H

R-ZEENF+=ZHA=+—H

14. W% - BERRE (&)

Company
¥IN/NE|
Office

equipment

WAERE

RMB’000

ARET T

712

(14)

(87)

611

610

636

599

12
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15.

16.

Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s land use rights represent prepaid land lease payments
under operating leases and their carrying amounts are analysed as

follows:

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HE®EE
Additions NE

Recognised during the year FRER

Carrying amount at 31 December R+=—A=+—HKEE

The land use rights of the Group are situated in Mainland China and are
held under medium lease terms.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

As at 1 January n—A—H8
Additions NE
Transferred to property, plant HAYE - BE KB

and equipment (note 14) (FFzE14)

As at 31 December R+—A=+—H

15. TR

AERE 2 i AR IR L HAERN 2 T

EFREBEESTAT

Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFIT
23,078 23,225
26,078 295
(1,694) (442)
47,462 23,078

ARERERE 2 T8 AR R P B ARE W IR+ 3

HAEH -

16. EEIRE

Group
HEE
2009 2008
S LI
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
53,033 10,496
56,350 83,125
(23,684) (40,588)
85,699 68,068
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. EREE
Group
g3
2009 2008
“EENE “EI)\%
Deferred Deferred
development development
cost Software Others Total cost Software Others Total
BERZHRA BH At R AN A Bt &%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR AR®TR ARETR ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
Cost: A
As at 1 January »=A—H 23,150 1,745 588 25,483 21,987 1,393 588 23,968
Additions RE 2,421 309 - 2,730 1,163 352 - 1,515
As at 31 December Wt=A=t-H 25,571 2,054 588 28,213 23,150 1,745 588 25,483
Accumulated amortisation R E#HRHE :
and impairment:
As at 1 January »=A—H 10,419 316 117 10,852 9,179 157 - 9,336
Amortisation provided for ~ FyE s
the year 1,163 196 117 1,476 855 159 117 1,131
Impairment during the year ~ £AE(E 200 - - 200 385 - - 385
As at 31 December Wt=A=t-H 11,782 512 234 12,528 10,419 316 117 10,852
Net book value: RAFE:
As at 31 December M=A=1-H 13,789 1,542 354 15,685 12,731 1,429 471 14,631
As at 1 January »=A—H 12,731 1,429 4n 14,631 12,808 1,236 588 14,632
18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RKE AR HNER
Company
RAFE]
2009 2008
—EBhE —EENEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREETTT
Unlisted shares, at cost JELEMRRG « AR 82,901 83,034
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURHTE A B F A 204,604 202,704
287,505 285,738




Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 18. RAKME AR ER (&)
The amounts due from subsidiaries of RMB204,604,000 (2008:
RMB202,704,000) are non-interest bearing which, although
technically repayable under the original terms of the transactions giving

J7E U BT BB /A I ZIE A R 5 204,604,000 L ( =
TNF : ARM 202,704,000 7T ) AT 5T F EHY
R o AR EME - ZEEHRBIREBERS
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rise thereto, have been deferred for a longer term and are therefore REBRENEER - BE/ERERE - WHER
classified as non-current. MBI AEER ©
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: B ARFEIT :
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity
registration of issued share/ attributable to
and operations paid-up capital the Company Principal
Name Eatilo Ay EE S QT EAE activities
AT EH T R S B [5F¥aYEN REBSE FEXK
Directly held
EERSFE
Dawnrays International British Virgin Islands US$100 100% Investment holding
Company Limited EBRERRES 10037 WEER
RinEEBR AR
Indirectly held
BB E
Dawnrays International Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% Investment holding
Company Limited BB 200,000 7T B R
RinEPRAR D B R AR
Suzhou Dawnrays Mainland China US$45,000,000 100% Manufacture
Pharmaceutical B KRE 45,000,0003 7T and sale of
Co., Ltd. # pharmaceutical
BN R IR BER R AR Y products
BUERIHEREEMD
Shanghai Dawnrays Mainland China US$680,000 92% Manufacture
Chemical Co., Ltd. B KRE 680,000 7T and sale of
AR ETHERARY pharmaceutical
intermediates
BLE N IHE B L
g
Suzhou Dawnrays Mainland China US$6,000,000 100% Manufacture
Chemical Co., Ltd. B KRE 6,000,000 3T and sale of
HMEInETHR AR pharmaceutical
intermediates
BLE N IHE B L

s
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MG R R M
18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 18. RAKME AR ER (&)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity
registration of issued share/ attributable to
and operations paid-up capital the Company Principal
Name Eatilo vy BRI NN T LS activities
NGRS T R S B [=F: 0 &N REBSE FEXK
Dawnrays Pharma Hong Kong HK$500,000 100% Sale of
(Hong Kong) Limited BB 500,000 7T pharmaceutical
Rin#Z(BHE) BRAA products
HE B EEM
Guangdong Dawnrays Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100% Sale of
Pharmaceutical REIRRE AR 3,000,000 pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. # products
BRRImEEEFR AR HE B EEM
Dawnrays (Nantong) Mainland China US$10,000,000 100% Manufacture
Pharmaceutical B KRE 10,000,000 37T and sale of
Science and Technology pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. # intermediates
Rin (FiR) BER AR AR BLE N IHE B L
g
#  These subsidiaries were registered under PRC law as foreign-owned E ZENIE A AR EAEE M AN IR E R -
enterprises.
19. INVENTORIES 19. B8
Group
rEE
2009 2008
ZEEhF T NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Raw materials (at cost) AR (CARKARETHE) 28,197 21,237
Work in progress (at cost or TEB G (AP NS Al &30 FEFHE) 113,836 90,527
net realisable value)
Finished goods (at cost or 2R ah (LARK NSk A &30 FEFHE) 42,313 47,772
net realisable value)
184,346 159,536
The amount of write-down of inventories as an expense is EFERIZHNTFEMBREBEAARKE
RMB1,548,300 (2008: RMB2,642,000). 1,548,300t (=& T )\ & : A R 2,642,000

) @
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR IR MY A
20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables e B 5 50E
Impairment BB
Notes receivable U S SR SR IE

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally for a period of three months
for major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade and notes receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions,
is as follows:

Trade receivables FEWE S 5IE
Outstanding balances with ages:

Within 90 days 90HK

Between 91 and 180 days 91£180H
Between 181 and 270 days 1812270 H
Between 271 and 360 days 2712360 H
Over one year —F A

EAREREI ) Ay 1 R ERER

20. BWEZ REEBEFE

Group

EE
2009 2008
—2BAE  —TI)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBFIT
164,236 167,524
(5,232) (3,361)
159,004 164,163
276,304 226,878
435,308 391,041

B#TEP —RFBEBFORI  AEEXREZEER
HTRERFRS - MEREPEEHR—RA/H=
fA - BuRFPHORERSEERSE - ARERK
ERFEEREERYGOR - WRAEEEEEM
BREBEERRRERE - SREEEEEEH
RETE AR o R LA P K B AT SR B )
WE SRS RIAEBTRAEF » AAESEE
FEEERR - BKE S KFBERIBTEHE

R A MR EER - RS HRAER
B 5 REBFIENRER DT T

Group

rEE
2009 2008
—ZEEhE —ZETE)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARKETTT
153,947 159,722
5,044 2,853
3 1,217
- 120
10 251

159,004 164,163




Br RS R I RE

20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

Notes receivables

Outstanding balances with ages:

Within 90 days

Between 91 and 180 days

e RIETRIR

LARER B0 B0 i RERER

90HK
912180 H

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as

follows:

At 1 January m—H—H
Impairment losses recognised EERREEE
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H

Notes to the Financial Statements

20. EWE S R RIBEFR (&)

Group

rEE
2009 2008
—2BAE  —TI)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBFIT
116,730 87,359
159,574 139,519
276,304 226,878

JEWE 5 FIBH R EREZ T ¢

Group

rEE
2009 2008
—2BAE  —TI)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFIT
3,361 3,361
1,871 =
5,232 3,361

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables is provided
for individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregated carrying
amount before provision of RMB5,232,000 (2008: RMB3,361,000).
The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers with
financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances.

L ECE 5 IB R R ERE s B E R R E A2
EAEAREES282,000TC(ZETNF : AR
3,361,0007T) WA B B R ERE I E 5 5K 1R
ZEE R REREYE 5 RIE N B AR R E
ZEFPAER - AEEN B2 E AR IS A A
A m SEREE A E B 58 5 1 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered to
be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired AREHA R I R E
Less than three month past due B LR 31EA
Over three months past due BHASE A LA £

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

20.

EWE S REERE(E)

R EIFE R FE W E 5 AR

ERAMIAT

Group

rEE
2009 2008
—EZhEF —TTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETTT
153,947 159,722
5,044 2,853
13 1,588
159,004 164,163

480 B K% 37 4 R (LAY FE W RO T B K & 3 HA O 4

BRUELNZREFER -

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Group are of
the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect

BB I R (E ) FEMGRIR T B % 7 B R &2 (B A
RROEECLENBITF AR - ERUEL
8 ARRIEFERABA LT EARIEHIRER
B AREEERYELREAZE  MARE

of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

SR AB AR 2HUKE - REE

N
WEMZ S

s A AR R SR E A E B INSa 1

21. AN - B REMERER

Group Company
REH PN

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EERE —ZTT/N\F ZBEAFE —ZTTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AREFTIT AR¥ETR AR®TT
Prepayments SELDEA 9,235 9,140 189 190
Deposits and other receivables Be R HE AW GIAR 5,074 6,517 - -
14,309 15,657 189 190

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.

EREEREBH LI ERE



22.

23.

Notes to the Financial Statements

MR M=t
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 22. EPER REJRZMEEE
OR LOSS
Group Company
rEE F/NE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBEEAF ZEITN\F ZBBEAF ZETIT)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AREBTRT AR¥TR AEBTET
Listed equity investments, LTRER

at market value: EME :

Hong Kong BB 5,814 3,404 5,814 3,404
The above equity investments at 31 December 2008 and 2009 were RZZZENERZZTZTNFT=A=+—0H0 " &
classified as held for trading. MRERE D RNURZ S BENMFERIRE -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. RERBELEEY

Group Company

rEH PN

2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEEAF ZEEN\F ZEBBEAF ZT)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT AR¥BTR AREBTT
Cash and bank balances Be MIBIT6EE 86,450 38,462 3,973 3,733
Short-term deposits e EATF R - 474 - 474
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEY 86,450 38,936 3,973 4,207

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances and
short-term deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB64,896,000 (2008: RMB31,179,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The carrying
amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair
values.

RIREHR - AEBUAREINENIRS KIBTT

#5717 B BATF AR B A R 64,896,000 7T (=%
Z@J\i : AR#31,179,0007T) ° AR AT]
B ERARMER - SAM - BRI B AEEINE
ERLERRAEE  SERMNETEEE  A5H
BEF BT ETTINEEBHRITIEARB R
REAMEE -

RITIF RO F SIZIRE 7 SRAO M R ERER 525
EHMEFETHERAT—HE=EATE  RFAE
ERIREFERMIE - I AR FE RO RE HIE B7F 30A
KRS - RITEREFATIHLE TR
R AEEREFORITH - REMRSFEMNE
HEEBIEARE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BB |RMEE
24. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES 24. BRHESZREENRE
An aged analysis of the trade and notes payables as at the end of the REZAHE - RREHRNENE S RENE
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BIBRER DT T ¢
Group
rEH
2009 2008
“EBEThE ZZETN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTIT
Outstanding balances with ages: RERECE] D B = R ERER ¢
Within 90 days 90HMA 210,756 152,170
Between 91 and 180 days 912180 H 138,366 128,326
Between 181 and 270 days 1812270 H 165 640
Between 271 and 360 days 2712360 H 153 97
Over one year —F LAk 1,015 195
350,455 281,428
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled FE T FRIR T ETRLE R — MR N+ B BRBR B 4k
on 90-day terms. The carrying amounts of the trade and notes i o BB 5 REBRFIE ZRAESEE A EE
payables approximate to their fair values. EZ)
02| 25. BANK ADVANCES FOR DISCOUNTED BILLS 25. IRITRARFRBEBN
Group
rEH
Effective 2009 2008
interest —EZhEF —ZETNF
rate(%) Maturity RMB’000 RMB’000
ERRFIE (%) FIEAH AR¥TT ARBFIT
Bank advances for Upon expiry
discounted bills of the bills

RITAEIRFIRE K 2.16% SIEF|H1R 5,000 24,907




Notes to the Financial Statements

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

27.

Advances from customers

Accruals

Taxes other than corporate

income tax

Payable for purchases of machinery
and construction of buildings

Other payables

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have

MR M=t
26. Hit ENSRREFAE
Group Company
rEE PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhE ZZT)N\F ZZBEAFE ZZTTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT AR%¥®TR ARETT
TEURBR X 5,963 2,044 - -
TEErAE 10,672 5,839 605 738
BRIEZFEFTISHION
KL IE 563 11,439 - -
LR RET
RN 13,948 12,631 - -
E At TR 9,668 4,395 6 -
40,814 36,348 611 738

an average

settlement term of six months. The carrying amounts of the other

payables and accruals approximate to their fair values.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOAN

Group
rEH

Current
Current portion of

long term bank loan-unsecured

Non-current

Long term bank loan-unsecured

*

tENE S REFEEZREERE AR B
=
27. ATERTER
2009
—EEhEF
Effective Original Equivalent
interest R HER
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000 RMB’000
BEEERIE (%) L= BETT AR¥Tx
S
PR R AAERTT
BER(—FANEEES) HIBOR*+1.5% 2010 2,000 1,761
A
EEIPRRARITE R HIBOR*+1.5% 2011-2012 4,000 3,522

Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate.

HA BRI NG FE R TN EABES - 2

* ERIRITRIZERE

/!

i
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BB |RMEE
27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOAN (Cont’d) 27. sHEBRITER(E)
The carrying amount of the Group’s bank loan approximate to its fair AEEMFERITERZ EAERE QR EHE
value. EZ
Group
rEH
2009 2008
—BBAE  —TT)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTIT
Analysed into: =1
Bank loan repayable: FTERITER
Within one year or on demand DR —F IR T K 1,761 -
In the second year RE—F 1,761 -
In the third to fifth year, inclusive RE=ZZFRFNA 1,761 -
5,283 -
28. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 28. BT
Group
rEH
2009 2008
04 —EThE —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFIT
At 1 January m—H—H - -
Received during the year S HYBUT B R 1,797 350
Released to the income statement T AMER TR (677) (350)
At 31 December ®n+—-—A=+—8H 1,120 =
Government grants have been received mainly for the construction of FrERAS B BT 18 0 B2 A SRR 45 FE UMD 5 [
certain items of property and plant. There are no unfulfiled conditions B o ILBUSEEFUR B SRR E -

or contingencies attached to these grants.




Notes to the Financial Statements
RIS SRR A
29. DEFERRED TAX 29. IEIEFLIE
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are FRELEHIBEEERBEZEHNAT :
as follows:
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
Amortisation Provision Total
i i k)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Group TEE AREBTITT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2008 R-ZEZENF—HA—H 28 840 868
Deferred tax (charged)/credited FRRERE SR
to the consolidated (k) HEez
income statement IEIERIE (FI7E10)
during the year (note 10) (28) 52 24
Deferred tax assets RZZEZENF+=RA=+—H
at 31 December 2008 MZZTTNF—F—H
and 1 January 2009 ZIRETTH B EE 3R - 892 892 )§>
c
>
Deferred tax (charged)/credited FRRERE SR G
to the consolidated (k) Eez S
income statement EIERIE (FRE10) N
during the year (note 10) = 314 314 3
Deferred tax assets RZZEZNF+=RA=+—H 105
At 31 December 2009 ZIRFERIR A - 1,206 1,206 I
o
i
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE
Withholding
tax
TR
RMB’000
Group REE ARETTT
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZEN\F+=-_A=+—H
and 1 January 2009 M=FThF—HA—H -
Deferred tax charged to the FARERE W TR
consolidated income statement R 2 BT
during the year (note 10) 18 (MizE10) 10,675
Deferred tax paid during the year REZEATRER (4,677)

At 31 December 2009 RZZZNFE+_A=+—H 5,998
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Notes to the Financial Statements

30. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

Authorised:
10,000,000,000
(2008: 10,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Issued and fully paid:
786,416,000
(2008: 778,648,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Equivalent to RMB’000

SRR MIEE

30.

SETE
FRREEO0.1BTH
& 38A% 10,000,000,000 A%
(=ZZZ\FF : 10,000,000,000 f%)

BRTRAR
SREEO.1 BTN
A% 786,416,000 %
(=== )\ £ : 778,648,000 f%)

FEARBTT

[LES
Bt
2009 2008
—e®RE  —TI\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
1,000,000 1,000,000
78,642 77,865
83,649 82,964

During the year, 7,952,000 share options under the Company’s share
option scheme were exercised. Accordingly, 7,952,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each were issued as a result of exercise of share
options.

The Company repurchased 184,000 shares on the Stock Exchange
at an aggregate consideration of HK$127,960 before expenses. The
repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled. The nominal value
of the cancelled shares was transferred to the capital redemption
reserve and the premium payable on the repurchase was charged
against the share premium account. The repurchases were effected by
the directors for the enhancement of the shareholder value in the long

term.

RARGER » 7,952,000 R BN A &) BB A i AT 2
R EE EITE o Bt - 7,952,000 [ &R E
ERT =22 EBRE RS BEREETEmE

7

KABEEBHEA R HFAR A REE 184,000
RARRIRRS - BB AR BRER127,960 7%
T ° A ERRHMEBEIEE 4R - Bk E
B/ ©FEE B DA A B D i R B B AR B
IR EE B BRDEER - EERERG S
RIRERRRETZ -



Notes to the Financial Statements
MR M=t
30. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d) 30. BA (&)
A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to the 20 Pl s - RARIEBITRARATEERNR
above movements in the Company’s issued share capital is as follows: SEET
Number of Share
shares in issue Issued premium
ERITRA capital account Total
A ;&N B3 = E e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BET T BT T
At 1 January 2008 RZZTZTN\F—H—H 793,172,000 79,317 61,269 140,586
Share options exercised BT RS IR 1,940,000 194 1,175 1,369
Share repurchased EREEIRAR R (16,464,000) (1,646) (9,918) (11,564)

At 31 December 2008 and RZZEZEN\F+—A=+—H

1 January 2009 rZFTNF—HA—H 778,648,000 77,365 52,526 130,391
Share options exercised BT RS I 7,952,000 795 4,860 5,655
Share repurchased EREEIRAR R (184,000) (18) (115) (133) >
zZz
z
c
At 31 December 2009 R-ZEENAF+=-A=+—H 786,416,000 78,642 57,271 135,913 i
8
3
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in note 31 BEAARRBBERESE ZFAND - HIIRHT S
to the financial statements. WERMIFESD o
107
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
independent non-executive directors, employees of the Group and
other eligible participants as defined under the Scheme. The Scheme
was adopted on 21 June 2003, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares currently permitted to be issued upon
the exercise of options under the Scheme is an amount equivalent to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue upon listing. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible person
in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a

general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in

advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$10 by each grantee with no other consideration being payable by
the grantee. An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date
on or after the date on which the option is granted as the Board may
determine in granting the option and expiring at the close of business
on such date as the Board may determine in granting the option but in
any event shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant.

31.

fERRERTE

AARERAMERETS([518]]) - EERYA
SEXBELELERNAER2EERHEE
NAZE) - SHEIM A ER2RERTARRES
BEMITES - AEEEE METEIAENEM
BERBHEE - ;BN =_TT=FA=1+—H
R BRIERTTEHRAEET - 58I B st
TEARERX

B AT REBFTBITTEBBIER A THEITNRDR
NE B RIS RBREITERIEARRRN LT
EEITRME10% - EEM 1218 A BEAR T
AHEIMBLABRSRENBBENR THITR
BERNEBE - UARBMEARFENE ETRGD
1% RMR o N — PR BB PR AR e BB O
AERIRA S BRI o

BYIARAIES - BH S EEWRE NS TR
Bt 5 B AR /B B S S B T E S ©
BEAN - AR 128 A B R T AR R EZER
RS 98 N FEHNTT EE I ol 1K 55 AR R e U5 B AR
B EBAARA R NN ETRG 8
0.1% - sk BEREN LA (BIEARFROL
HERRAE R I B B (B8 51 &) #8481 5,000,000 7
7T BIER A ERREAS EEUSRFRE -

BETERENZEENEZZRHNES 21 A%
B - AR AR AR R R BRI E A AE
HASMI0BETHRAARE -HEZTSER
HERE A EREEN A EEE =k
R RBRER B B HIR & R R AR L
AIBERy (B an ] MR HR R B HEst +4)
RIBZET IR TIEBARAE -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The exercise price of share options is determined by the directors, but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options;
and (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer,
provided that the exercise price shall not be less than the nominal value
of the ordinary shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme
during the year:

2009
—EENF

Weighted
average
exercise price

kg g
TEE
HK$

BT

per share
BR

At 1 January n—H—H 0.649
Granted during the year ~ FRBHH -
Exercised during the year FRE{T{E 0.599
Expired during the year ~ FRE kK 0.580

At 31 December ®W+=-—A=+—H 0.673

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during the year was HK$0.898 (2008: HK$0.767).

31. MBRMERTE (&

BRENITEENESTERE @ ETSERIR TS
BHERSE () AABRMNELBREE R E
Bk S PP SR AU E ¢ R (i) AN A R IR B IR
B B HIAT R 5 B AR 3 AT TR0 T 15 K
B HETRENFIRAR R EBERNEE °

B EE TRAATZEREINERAE
EERREER -

AT BT EIRFARITRAEARE :

2008
ZEENEF

Weighted

average

exercise price

IntEFE
Number 1T1E(E Number
of options HK$ of options
BB R BT A

2B per share 28

’000 T 000
24,400 0.639 24,680
- 0.718 1,800
(7,952) 0.596 (1,940)
(20) 0.580 (140)
16,428 0.649 24,400

6002 LHOd3d TVNNNY
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©
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) 31. BRESTE (&
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options REREHR - RITE R BARETTEE RITEHAME
outstanding as at the end of reporting period are as follows: T
2009 —EENF
Exercise price* Exercise period
TEE" TEEHIE
HK$
Number of options BT
BRERE per share
’000 =1
1,100 0.630 17-11-2005 to 16-11-2010
4,668 0.580 28-12-2005 to 27-12-2010
800 0.720 01-09-2007 to 31-08-2012
7,280 0.710 04-04-2008 to 03-04-2013
780 0.800 10-07-2008 to 09-07-2013
800 0.740 01-02-2009 to 31-01-2014
1,000 0.700 09-12-2009 to 08-12-2014
16,428
2008 —EENE
Exercise price* Exercise period
IfEE~ il
HK$
Number of options BT
B SR per share
000 Bk
1,900 0.630 17-11-2005 to 16-11-2010
10,700 0.580 28-12-2005 to 27-12-2010
400 0.500 05-05-2006 to 04-05-2009
800 0.720 01-09-2007 to 31-08-2012
7,500 0.710 04-04-2008 to 03-04-2013
1,300 0.800 10-07-2008 to 09-07-2013
800 0.740 01-02-2009 to 31-01-2014
1,000 0.700 09-12-2009 to 08-12-2014
24,400
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case e TR S B ITAI RSk A EBRR A IR
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Group’s share H A B S - BIEE RRIE 7T (5B /8 T A
capital. e o -

e
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) 31. BRESE (A
BT ABAGEENRBEENAABIRE TRK
#E R AN R - FREAERA G - XeE
IR T BB R R MG o A BRER S P

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was estimated
as at the date of grant, using a Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options

were granted. This value is inherently subjective and uncertain due to
the assumptions made and the limitation of the valuation model used.
The following table lists the inputs to the model:

ERNGEENFERS  FABERSFSEEH
B RAEERE o TRIIEZER AR
=

Date of grant Riti A 17/11/2004 28/12/2004  5/5/2005 10/1/2007  4/4/2007 10/7/2007  1/2/2008 9/12/2008
Dividend yield (%) R 2K (%) 6.94 7.53 8.92 6.05 5.87 5.14 5.85 .27
Expected volatility (%) TEHIRIE (%) 47 46 47 43 43 43 43 39
Historical volatility (%) BITRIE (%) 47 46 47 43 43 43 43 39
Risk-free interest rate (%) BERITRE (%) 2.76 2.91 2.90 3.70 4.05 4.63 2.20 1.63
Expected life of option (year) ~ B&RAETETFH () 6 6 4 6 6 6 6 6

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the
past five years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns

BRERAFHIORBEBEAFNELERNE
TE ORI TR - FBHKER

that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that BB R I8 Rl BB R AR B A RER - MR KBRS )§>
c
the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not RN BERAER - i
necessarily be the actual outcome. g
s
=
No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the W E MR FERENRZIA DL EBENTEE €
measurement of fair value. Moo 111
|
The 7,952,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the FA - 1TERY 7,952,000 17 B A% #E 5| BUA A 7] B j@
issue of 7,952,000 ordinary shares of the Company and new share 177,952,000 f% E@A% 1D © FTAK AN 795,200 7% 7T %

capital of HK$795,200 and share premium of HK$4,860,000 as further
detailed in note 30 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 16,428,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 2% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
16,428,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company, additional
share capital of HK$1,642,800 and share premium of HK$11,570,000.

KR %18 4,860,000 8 7T © s BE R IEHRE
FF5ES0 ©

RERE R - AR FIRIRR 8% 5 16,428,00010
BRERARITE - BERE BARAREETRG
#2% o WERRFHFOERERE - BEITE
B2 T BB AR 1S 5| BN A R 3£1716,428,0008% FESN
AR - 1,642,800 7 7T KO FEINIR AN LA R BR A7 3
811,570,00078 7T °
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32. RESERVES

(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein

for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity on pages 49 to 50 of the financial

statements.

()

(i)

(i)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the then consolidated net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group Reorganisation
as set out in note 1, over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

Statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
articles of association of the Mainland China subsidiaries,
the Mainland China subsidiaries are each required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the PRC generally accepted accounting
principles, to the SSR until this reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital of the Mainland China Subsidiaries. Part
of the SSR may be converted to increase paid-up capital,
provided that the remaining balance after the capitalisation
is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve
The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record
exchange differences arising from the translation of the

financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

32. %

(a)

#%E
AREREANEE BT FENSBR
BHEMANBREBIOBE0ENEA
EREBER -

Y

(i)

(i)

A E SR
AEENBARBRIERIZM T PTE
W EEAMKEN B AR E AR
BEEFEEARARMRAREE
MEITNARRBRMDEERZH

JREBBRNEE
RIBFEARDERTENERRNA
AEZ - PEMEARSBERT
AREER - FEBREFA10%
DEEEERHBAES  BEAEATR
HAEEED T ENERREMER
B50% ° B EERBATRE AIER
BURBALASZ IR AR - B AEIR R
ERER N AERA FE E ANEY 25% ©

(B KB

BEE 54, R B e 5 70 PR AR R SR I S SN Y
BRAMMBEHRRMELNEN =
R



32. RESERVES (Cont’d)

(b) Company

At 1 January 2008
Exchange realignment
Dividend on shares issued
for employee share
options exercised after
31 December 2007
Equity-settled share
option arrangements
Exercise of share options
Shares repurchased
and cancelled
Total comprehensive
income for the year
Interim 2008 dividend
Proposed final 2008 dividend

At 31 December 2008

Exchange realignment
Dividend on shares issued
for employee share
options exercised after
31 December 2008
Equity-settled share
option arrangements
Exercise of share options
Shares repurchased
and cancelled
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Interim 2009 dividend
Proposed final 2009 dividend

At 31 December 2009

Notes to the Financial Statements

=t-REfTEH
EEREREMRT
RiTRE
IABES A1
ERERH
f1EEkE

BEREHR(

AERRENGELE
“ZZ\FRHRE
RE_ZZNERARE

e L A
=+
EiaE
“23)5+7
=+
BB
RieS
R
B
fikaE

BRREHRD
AEERANELE
EENERERE
RE_ZENERARE
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=t~
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32. f#fk (&
(b) &=AH
Capital  Exchange
Share Share  redemption  fluctuation

premium  Contributed option reserve reserve Retained
account surplus reserve EX B profits Total
RAEE HARR  BRERG REGfE REGE REREA &%
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETn  ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARMTn  ARETr  ARETR
65,370 100,175 2,208 1,249 (40,616) 83,275 211,661
- - - - (17,704) - (17,704)
- - - - - (22) 22
- - 609 - - - 609
1,046 - (195) - - - 851
8732 - - 1,450 - (1,450) (8732
- - - - - 36,762 35,762
- - - - - (12,576) (12,576)
- - - - - (741 (27,477)
57,684 100,175 2,622 2,699 (68,320) 71512 182,372
- - - - (428 - (428
- - - - - (17) (17
- - 325 - - - 325
4283 - (795) - - - 3,488
(102) - - 16 - (16) (102)
- - - - - 40,039 40,039
- - - - - (12,452) (12,452)
- - - - - (34,769) (34,769)
61,865 100,175 2,152 2,115 (58,748) 70,297 178,456

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the

then consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to

the Group Reorganisation referred to in note 32(a), over the nominal

value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

AR BB B SR UDMT 5 32(a) Fril 15 IR 15 £ &
SHEMKIENB ARSNGB EFEBRAKN
AR BIEUE S E M TR RRG EER

BB e
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32. RESERVES (Cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

(b) Company (Cont’d)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in
the accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in
note 2.3 to the financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the issued capital account and the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be transferred

32. fifE (&

(b) AT (&)
BREFESFEERLARRITEEND
B HiE— P ERER B EmEM 2.3
BN Z AR IS TERAN - 558
BIERITER - HBEBEEEHITR
AR R AR s ERR - sE A RS 2 HP
SRR - HEERREERER -

to retained profits should the related options expire or be

forfeited.

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets

HHEE

Trade and notes receivables

Financial assets included

in prepayments, deposits

and other receivables
Financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities
HEaE

Trade and notes payables
Financial liabilities included
in other payables
and accruals

33. RERBE S 2HELTE

Group
F5E
2009 2008
“EEhE =S
Financial assets Financial assets
at fair value at fair value
through profit through profit
and loss Loans and and loss Loans and
EBER receivables FRER receivables
WA ESIRR EXR Total AR E58R Bk Total
ZIBEE JEWEHIE &% LHBAE R ek
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR NS AREFT AREFL
BYEHR
ZREFA - 435,308 435,308 - 391,041 391,041
STABAR - e
REfM RN
LIBEE - 5,074 5,074 - 6,489 6,489
BRBRULAE
Sz BERE 5,814 - 5814 3,404 - 3,404
LeRALSEN - 86,450 86,450 - 38,936 38,936
5,814 526,832 532,646 3,404 436,466 439,870
2009 2008
“EERE —ET)N\F
Financial liabilities Financial liabilities
at amortised cost at amortised cost
REBERATE RE A2
ZEBEE ZHBBE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFT
ERE S REETE 350,455 281,428
STAEMERR
RISt BEZMBEE
25,299 28,465
375,754 309,893




33.

34.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont’d)

33. REAB D 2MBETA(E

Company
ARF
Financial assets 2009 2008
BHEE ZEENE —ZTN\E
Financial assets Financial assets
at fair value at fair value
through profit through profit
and loss Loans and and loss Loans and
BBER receivables EiEs receivables
URAESIE 85K Total PR 7 (B3 Eak Total
ZEBERE JEWhIE ] LIHEE felE &5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR#T R

Trade and notes receivables ~ ENE 5 R ZE7E - -

ARETR ARBTTL ARETT ARETTL

Financial assets included SABRE ke
in prepayments, deposits REMEKH
and other receivables LIBEE - - - = - -
Financial assets at fair BBRBRNAAE
value through profit or loss SR BTG A E 5,814 - 5,814 3,404 - 3,404
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRLEEN - 3,973 3,978 - 4,207 4,207
5814 3,973 9,787 3,404 4,207 7,611

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing
the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which
all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which
all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)

34. DRRESREE

SUEH
TE]

J
MR(E CREHAR) T E

F_E  ARERBRAHCENAAEEAIE
SENEATZE (ERIER) N2 HEUE

MEETE

i
|11
TE]

BUg GFBREE) WEEEE

 DRBETHMAERA R ERTS
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FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2009, the Group and the Company held the
following financial instruments measured at fair value:

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2009:

Level 1
£—E
RMB$’000
ARET R
Equity investments at FHiRERIA
fair value through RNAESIER
profit or loss LA E 5,814

During the year ended 31 December 2009, there were no transfers of
fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating activities
(when revenue or expenses are denominated in a different currency
from the Group’s functional currency) and the Group’s net investments
in foreign subsidiaries.

DAESRER (A

R-ZEZNF+-_A=1t—8H  XEERAQF]
RERDABEHENTIHMBITA

REZZZNF+ZA=1+—HERAABEFENE
B

Level 2 Level 3 Total
-l £=F &5t
RMB$’000 RMB$’000 RMB$’000
AR¥T AR¥T T AR®¥T
- - 5,814
BHE_TTNF+_A=1+—HItFE F—8
HE— EEWA AR EFEER - NEE AR
HEZRE -

35.

TRIEMREREBFEREE

AEEHRBRKESFENENE SRR E M
ERUBEERAE  WIREKLEERES -

AEE 7 T EFTS M E R R R INERR
FEERBREABEEZRER - LT REESRHIL
REEE L SHREROBER ZHE -

S L B
SMNERBRAER TANRAABERRKRASRER
RIfE RSB E LN BRI ERR A EREAFERE R

FRIRAEEDREEENERETHE) RAKERSN
BB ARNFREER -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

Currently, the PRC government imposes control over foreign
currencies. RMB, the official currency in the PRC, is not freely
convertible. Enterprises operating in the PRC can enter into exchange
transactions through the People’s Bank of China or other authorised
financial institutions. Payments for imported materials or services
and remittance of earnings outside of the PRC are subject to the
availability of foreign currencies which depends on the foreign currency
denominated earnings of the enterprises, or must be arranged through
the People’s Bank of China or other authorised financial institutions.
Approval for exchanges at the People’s Bank of China or other
authorised financial institutions is granted to enterprises in the PRC for
valid reasons such as purchases of imported materials and remittance
of earnings. While conversion of RMB to Hong Kong dollars or other
foreign currencies can generally be effected at the People’s Bank of
China or other authorised financial institutions, there is no guarantee
that it can be affected at all times.

The Group does not have any significant investment outside of
Mainland China. However, the Group has transaction currency
exposures. This exposure arises from sales of the Group’s subsidiaries
denominated in currencies other than the Group’s functional currency.
Approximately 9% of the Group’s sales for the year ended 31
December 2009 (2008: 8%) are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the Group. Upon receipt of currency
other than the functional currency, the Group sells them to the banks
immediately.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in foreign currency exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

35.

TREREEERERER (F)

SNERBR ()

BAT - FEBMDERINEES - FEESTER
ARBETAIEHEE - RPBERE 2 bEAER
PEARRITREMAB A S BEBRLEINNER
5 o XfE AR SRS 2 B E LK RFE
hEIRSMEERI T INE HE BRG] - WKRED
EUINETHEZ B8R - BB RTEARRT
SEAMB AT REBIER L - RPEREZ DR
ETEERHEET - IFEAEO RN RELA
A ATERHL/ER T B A RRITHE AR £ R
WRETT R - BRARE BT EMINE
— MR AT IAE%ETT&E?@LT&%M&%
17 - BEAREBIMEM S EEIREETT -

AEBRPBEREAIILEEMERRE - R
i ARBEEHRZEERER - GRRRKRE
AR SR B ) R B R FE R B R RIA AR EIThBE B
AN BEEETZIHE - BE_ZTTNF+-H
=T —RALFE  AEENI% ZHE(ZFETN
F : 8%) IARKENER AN EEEHE -
RIREITHEE G R AN B’ 1R - ARESENR K
FZEERETRITALBRABEER -

TEIRERA £ T8 E R TR 2 E)
\'$EIW@MWEWE%%E%ﬁﬁA@ﬂ
REBHEEE (AREREERABNALE
#8) -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

2009 —EENEF
If RMB strengthens against US dollar i AR B H T HHE
If RMB weakens against US dollar W AR N ETRE
2008 —EENF
If RMB strengthens against US dollar i AR B H T HHE
If RMB weakens against US dollar W AR N ETIRE

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivables and balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debt is not significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of
the Group, which comprise cash and short-term deposits, other
receivables and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these

instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit
risk are managed by customer/counterparty. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables is disclosed in note 20 to the

financial statements.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk

Notes to the Financial Statements
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The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring

liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its

financial instruments and financial assets (e.g. trade receivables) and

projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end

of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

Bank advances for
discounted bills

Interest-bearing
banks loan

Trade and notes
payables

Other payables

Bank advances for
discounted bills

Trade and notes
payables

Other payables

RITHRARE
B3

ATRRITER

ENEZR
FEHR

YN

RINAER
B

ERESR
Bi#30R

HABRENK

REBESRR

AEEZERAKEERBESE TR  BEX
HESRRNEAR - IWTAS
A7 8 B (AN FEICE 5 BR5R) O BIHR B PA R 2R B 48

BEBHBEFRENE -

REBIRBEA KRB R BRI S AR

BREZZIHABGLNT
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Group
F5E
2009
—EBNE
3 to less than
Less than 12 months 1to5 Over

On demand 3 months ZEDR years 5years Total
REXR DPR=MEA T=f8A —-ERE BENLE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F AR®TR AR®T AR®ET R AR®T AR®F
- 5,000 - - - 5,000
- - 1,761 3,522 - 5,283
641 224,299 125,515 - - 350,455
23,870 - - - - 23,870
24,511 229,299 127,276 3,522 - 384,608

2008

“TTN\F
3to less than
Less than 12 months 1t0o5 Over

On demand 3 months =ELR years 5 years Total
BRER PR={EA +=A —E=hF AFNE FeE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREBTT AREFTT ARETT AREFTT AREFT
- 12,960 11,947 - - 24,907
2,066 192,637 86,725 - - 281,428
28,465 - - - - 28,465
30,531 205,597 98,672 - - 334,800
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont’d)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2009 and 31
December 2008.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total capital plus net debt. The net debt includes,
bank advances for discounted bills, trade and notes payables, other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank loan, government grant
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to
the equity holders of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the

reporting period were as follows:

Trade and notes payables

Other payables and accruals

Bank advances for discounted bills
Interest-bearing bank loan
Government grant

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio

N B 5 REEFIR
HAE MR R B RE
IRITRRIR IR R
FERIRITER
BURFRE R

o RERREEHED

FAE

(SYNCIL £
FA AR

BEARKFAE

CEN SRS
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AEEERREERRECERREARBLY
HEHMAE - BEFAABERRE  KAEEK
SRBXNTRERORERE  REEARTRR
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BEAEEMER  BRKBREY EFLEAEE
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AEBRAERABLREREBEAER  ME
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AHE - FRERBRRITMARERN  BNES
REEFIR - REMN R RESAE  fHERTT
EFMBTER  XNBRREIREEEY - &
AERGRRERA ARGEZD - REEHR
ZERABLENT

Group

rEE
2009 2008
—ZThE T N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
350,455 281,428
40,814 36,348
5,000 24,907
5,283 -
1,120 =
(86,450) (38,936)
316,222 303,747
711,289 628,541
1,027,511 932,288
31% 33%
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36. COMMITMENTS

(@) Operating lease commitments
The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to six years.

At 31 December 2009, the Group and the Company had total
future minimum lease rentals payable under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

36. &iE

(a)

REAEAE
AEERBEEEHEERIARETHRAY
X -PERENBEHRNF—ERFLZ
& °

RE-TTAFI-A=+—8 £%£H
RAR AR R ARG SR OR B &K
R R R EREAET

Group Company
REH RATF
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhEF —TENF —EThEF —ZTTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T AR¥T T AREETTT
Within one year —FR 1,941 1,368 - -
After one year —FRED
but no more ZRAF
than five years 2,991 916 - -
4,932 2,284 - -
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEAEE
Group Company
rEE ¥ /N
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhE “TTN\F —EENE —TENF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETIT AR¥ETR ARET T
Contracted, but TET4)  ERVERE
not provided for: 5 K ies
Plant and machinery 33,940 54,990 - -
Authorised, but BERE - BRATH :
not contracted for: W M ias
Plant and machinery 120,470 58,380 - -
154,410 113,370 - -
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 37. BERXRZ
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38.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: AEEFZEEAEME
2009 2008
“EBEThE ZZETN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFIT
Short-term employee benefits HAith 52 BE S1& T 3,793 3,682
Post-employment benefits BRINERET 72 73
Share-based payments ARGt BERER A 89 161

Total compensation paid to FEEEAR

key management personnel [ Gk 3,954 3,916

Further details of the directors’ emoluments are included in note 7 to

the financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

the board of directors on 30 March 2010.

EXEMS TN RARMET
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Five Year Financial Summary

AFMBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority interests NTAREERBEREANRERE 2 ¥5 - & B
EROBRFESLE - LR E B AMEEZA

TR -

of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out below.

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—BLFE

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—BEAE ZTITN\F ZZTTLF ZTITF ITTRF
RESULTS B RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT ARETRT ARBTRT ARBTT
Revenue WA 1,082,110 947,710 919,945 788,797 734,002
Cost of sales SHERZA (754,058) (691,047) (680,443) (604,788) (518,769)
Gross profit EF 328,052 256,663 239,502 184,009 215,233
Other income and gain H bl A Rz 4,595 5,072 4,320 2,955 1,959
Selling and distribution costs HERDIHER (101,206) (79,395) (69,218) (563,669) (54,230)
Administrative expenses 1T EHR (47,575) (43,796) (41,117) (36,400) (38,597)
Other expenses HEEA (32,008) (22,485) (21,950) (26,590) (18,214)
Finance costs 75 & A (395) (343) - (976) (202)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AR A 151,463 115,716 111,537 69,329 105,949
Income tax expense FrfS &t (33,119) (13,585) (10,380) (3,451) (245)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEEF 118,344 102,131 101,157 65,878 105,704

Attributable to: AR B IE e ¢
Equity holders of the parent B ARERFEA A 118,388 102,037 101,072 65,781 105,646
Minority interest DERR R (44) 94 85 97 58
118,344 102,131 101,157 65,878 105,704

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE - 8EBR

MINORITY INTERESTS DERRER
TOTAL ASSETS WEE 1,126,465 975,215 851,398 758,337 745,053
TOTAL LIABILITIES wWaE (414,621) (346,002) (272,392) (245,290) (255,996)
MINORITY INTEREST DERRRER (555) 672) (654) (790) (743)
711,289 628,541 578,352 512,257 488,314

600¢ LHOd3d TVNNNY
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
5 May 2010 to Friday, 7 May 2010 (both days inclusive) during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered and effected. In order to qualify for

the final dividend, all transfers of shares of the Company accompanied by

the relevant share certificates and the appropriate share transfer forms must

be lodged with the Company’s Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus

Limited, at 26/F Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not

later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 4 May 2010.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

2009 AGM

Announcement of 2009 interim results

Announcement of 2009 annual results

2010 AGM

DIVIDENDS

2009 Interim dividend

Payment date for 2009 interim dividend

Proposed 2009 final dividend

Ex-dividend date for 2009 final dividend

Book closing dates for 2009 final dividend

Payment date for proposed 2009
final dividend

8 May 2009

21 August 2009

30 March 2010

7 May 2010

$0.018 per share

16 September 2009

$0.050 per share

3 May 2010

5-7 May 2010

on or about 12 May 2010

Information for shareholders

EENERGBRER

AR E—EFRARBE(BH=)E-_FT—FF
AACH(EHR) (BEEERA) GEHERN B
PEREFE - NEBERBE IR ERA DRI
9o REERERBREMNER  IAARRFMNRMD
ERERAERELARZERE AR - —ZFH
AMA (E8=) TFMEFIERT - XERRRNESR
MBFERLRE  BBERNER28FEEERL261E
FERERHERATIHEBLELTE -

B 3% B &
—ETNFREBEFRS —ETNFRANR
AHEZTTNEFHEE —ETNEF
NA=+—H
P —TTNFE2FEE —T—TFE=A=1+H
T TFRERAFRE —T-TFERA+LHR

BRE

ZETNFRERKRE SP et
0.0187C
—ETNFRERR IR B & —ETNEF
AA+RE
BUREE - T TNERBIRS B 0.050 7T
ZETNFAREKRERE B —E T
HH=H
—ETNFRPBREELBE B E —TTHF
AAREHZELH
ke —TTNFERAKRE —T-TH

KA B EA HA+ BRI



Suites 3212-13, Shell Tower, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.
HREEE7 i EH SR AESRRAE3212-13%F

22 Tianling Road, Wuzhong Economic Development District, Suzhou, Jiangsu, PRC.

FR BT &R A &R N T R AR B 3 B R B RK 2257

www.dawnrays.com
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